HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, February 27, 2019

5:30 p.m. Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
5:30 p.m. Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below.
6:30 p.m. Reconvene to open session no earlier than 6:30 p.m.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

OPENING BUSINESS:
Call to order and roll call

Gabriel Leal, President Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk Rod Boone
Genaro Reyes Ray Odom

IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board may
limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.
1. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,

resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.

2. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator, Superintendent
Charles Tracy regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.

3. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified School
District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15CvV01394.

4. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School,
approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency Negotiator:
Charles Tracy, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties: Westermann Family and
Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

Report out action taken in closed session.
PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:
ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS:
1. Board Member Comments/Reports.
2. ASB President and Student Council President Reports.
a. Hamilton High School, Ofelia Flores
b. Hamilton Elementary School, Ximena Hernandez
3. District Reports (written)
a. Food Service Report by LeAnn Radtke (written) (page 1)
b. Operations Report by Marc Eddy (written) (page 2)
c. Technology Report by Derek Hawley (written) (page 3)
4. Principal and Dean of Student Reports
a. Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal
b. Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students
c.  Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal
5. Superintendent Report by Charles Tracy
a. Form 700 —Annual Statement of Economic Interests, file electronically with Glenn County.
b. Citizens’ Oversight Committee Member — 7 members needed.
¢.  Infinity Communications and Consulting — E-Rate Quarterly Report for Hamilton Unified School District. (page
4-6)
d. Chico State Teacher Recruitment Fair — Saturday, March 9, 2019.



e b —




8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

e. LCAP Stakeholder Meeting, Board Workshop — Saturday, March 9, 2019, 8:30 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. in the
Hamilton High School Library.
f. Small School Districts Association Annual Conference reminder — Sunday, March 31%to Monday, April 1.
Upcoming School Board Meetings:
i. Wednesday, March 27, 2019
ii. Wednesday, April 17, 2019
iii. Wednesday, May 22, 2019

PRESENTATIONS:
1. Gear Up Grant, future partnerships/plans by Stacey Garrett. (page 7-8)

CORRESPONDENCE:
1. Harbor Freight Tool Donation to Hamilton High School Shop Class. (page 9-12)

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:
1. Educational Specifications and CDE site requirements, by Mike Cannon.

DISCUSSION ITEMS:

1. Discuss Low Performing Block Grant Plan 2018 spending and monitoring proposal. (page 13-15)

2. Hamilton Unified School District Audit Report June 30, 2018 by Diane Holliman. (page 20-109)

3. Glenn County Educators Hall of Fame 2018-19, nominees and selection. (page 110-112)

4. Resolution 18-19-110 RE Exemption from Local Land Use Planning Requirements; and, Designation of District as Lead
Agency for CEQA Study Purposes. (page 113-115)

Demographic Student for Hamilton Unified School District, SchoolWorks, Inc. by Mike Cannon. (page 116-142)

CEQA Study Contract, Placeworks, Inc. & Hauge Brueck by Mike Cannon. (page 143-188)

7. Contract Proposal for Title 5 Risk Assessments for Hamilton High School Expansion, Placewarks, Inc. by Mike Cannon.

(page 189-199)

o

PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be heard
(agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15
minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.

ACTION ITEMS:
1. Chief Business Official Employment Contract for Hamilton Unified School District 2019 - 2022. (page 200-205)
2. Low Performing Block Grant Plan 2018. (page 13-15)
3. Gear-Up grant proposed expenditures (to be expended by June 30, 2019). (page 16-17)
4. North State Arts Education Consortium Butte County Office of Education and Hamilton Unified School District. (page
18-19)
Accept Hamilton Unified School District Audit Report June 30, 2018. (page 20-109)
6. Site Safety Plans (full plans available on www.husdschools.org, available for public review during the board meeting
and by request by contacting the District Office):
a. Hamilton High School (includes the District Office, Ella Barkley High School, and Hamilton Community Day School
and Hamilton Adult School). (page 206-229)
b. Hamilton Elementary School (includes Hamilton State Preschool and Hamilton Special Education). (page 230-256)
7. Resolution 18-19-109 Emergency Management Resolution — Hamilton Unified School District has implemented a School
Emergency Plan for all schoal sites and facilities. {page 257)
8. Resolution 18-19-110 RE Exemption from Local Land Use Planning Requirements; and, Designation of District as Lead

Agency for CEQA Study Purposes. (page 113-115)
9. Demographic Student for Hamilton Unified School District, SchoolWorks, Inc. by Mike Cannon. (page 116-142)

10. CEQA Study Contract, Placeworks, Inc. by Mike Cannon. (page 143-155)

11. Contract Proposal for Title 5 Risk Assessments for Hamilton High School Expansion, Placeworks, Inc. by Mike Cannon.
(page 189-199)

12. Second reading of: (page 258-265)
a. Board Bylaw 9250 Renumeration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits.
b. Board Policy and Adminstrative Regulation 0420 School Plans/Site Councils (for regular manual maintenance).
c. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 0450 Comprehensive Safety Plan (for regular manual maintenance).
d. Board Policy and Administrative Reguation 0460 Local Control and Accountability Plan (for regular manual

maintenance).
e. Administrative Regulation 1220 Citizen Advisory Committee (for regular manual maintenance).

bl







14.0

15.0

f.  Administrative Regulation 3311.1 Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures (for regular manual
maintenance).

Administrative Regulation 3543 Transportation Safety and Emergencies (for regular manual maintenance).
Administrative Regulation 4200 Classified Personnel (for regular manual maintenance).

Adminsitrative Regulation 5113 Absences and Excuses (for regular manual maintenance).

Administrative Regulation 5131.41 Use of Seclusion and Restraint (for regular manual maintenance).

Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5141.52 Suicide Prevention (for regular manual maintenance).
Board Policy and Adminsitrative Regulation 5144 Discipline (for regular manual maintenance).

Board Policy 5146 Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students (for regular manual maintenance).

Board Policy 6146.1 High School Graduation Requirements (for regular manual maintenance).

Administrative Regulation 6173.2 Education of Children of Military Families (for regular manual maintenance).
Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 6175 Migrant Education Program (for regular manual maintenance).
Administrative Regulation 6183 Home and Hospital Instruction (for regular manual maintenance).

Board Bylaw 9322 Agenda/Meeting Materials (for regular manual maintenance).

Board Bylaw 9324 Minutes and Recordings (for regular manual maintenance).

""“-0‘50:53—7?‘—":}'00

CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one motion.

There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public request

specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda approved by the

Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.

1. Warrants and Expenditures. (page 266-294)

2. Williams Quarterly January 2019. (page 295)

3. 2017-2018 School Accountability Report Cards (SARC): Hamilton High School, Hamilton Elementary School, Ella Barkley
High School and Hamilton Community Day School. (page 296-341)

4. Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Agenda for January 10, 2019. (page 342)

5. Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Minutes for January 10, 2019. (page 343-344)

6. Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Agenda for February 14, 2019. (page 345)

7

8

9

Hamilton Elementary School Site Council Meeting Minutes for February 14, 2019. (page 346)
Minutes for the Regular Board Meeting on January 23, 2019. (page 347-352)
Minutes for the Special Board Meeting on January 31, 2019. (page 353-355)

10. Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually).

a. Out
i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. None
ii. Hamilton High School
1. 12" Gradex1
b. In

i. Hamilton Elementary School
1. None
ii. Hamilton High School
1. 11" GradeX 1
11. Personnel Actions as Presented:
a. New hires:

i. Felicia Tenuta Long Term Math Substitute HES
ii. Jolene Towne Confidential HR & Payroll Specialist (July) District
b. Resignations/Retirement:
i. Leslie Anderson Mills Teacher on Special Assignment (TOSA) (June) District
ii. Asha Mundo District Universal - Maintenance & Transportation District
iii. Timothy Bushard JV Assistant Football Coach HHS
iv. Diane Holly Day Mathematics Teacher HES

ADJOURNMENT:



N
.
e - - - ——yr Am———




January 2019 Food Services Report
Hamilton Unified School District

Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare

LeAnn Medina

Combined District Totals 18 days of school
. Lunches 8444
Breakfasts 5209
Boys and Girls Club snacks 663
Boys and Girls Suppers 2034
Total $44737.92



Board Report January

Transportation
3770 Miles Driven

14 Trips for 1486 miles

Maintenance

HHS
Replace exterior Parking lot lights
7 home soccer games
10 Home basketball games

HES

LED Retro fit exterior Lights



Technology Report
Frank James, Director of Technology

Derek Hawley, Information Systems Technician

Completed and in Progress Tasks —February 2019

1. Lenovo Chromebook Warranty work: We have shipped out another round of
Chromebooks for warranty work. The Chromebooks are from classroom on the
Elementary and High School sites. We still have five months of warranty left so we are
trying to maximize out free repair options.

2. Dell Warranty Work: We have received and installed parts for our OptiPlex 7040
desktop PCs. These PCs are still under warranty for another six months so we are trying
to flesh out any issue while we still have the free coverage.

3. Tickets: Qur ticket count has remained steadily in the 30s. We have had a few spikes
here and there but our response times have remained consistent.

4. Google Cloud Printer: We have installed our first google cloud printer at the Elementary
School. So far it is doing exactly what we wanted it to and it’s proving to be a nice
conference room solution. )

5. DC3 rebuild: We have begun the rebuilding of DC3 (old server). The new DC3 will be
used as a backup domain controller as well as a VM manager. We are also hoping to
implement some automatic power outage shutdown procedures through this rebuilt
machine.

6. AgPC: Anew PC has been deployed in the Ag department. This PC is going to be used
with the plasma cutter. It will also have AutoCAD, NestMaster and Adobe Illustrator on
it for design purposes.

7. FS/Files Migration: HHS-Classified has been migrated off of the fs server on onto the
new files server. The files server will be used as our primary network storage for files
moving forward. So far HES-Classified and HHS-Classified have been migrated.

Certificated will be migrated in the future.



E-Rate Quarterly Report for H

This documentation provides a status report for E-Rate fun

TNFINBTY

COMMUNICATIONS AND CONSULTING

amilton Unified School District

ding disbursements for Funding Year 20 (2017/2018) and Funding

Year 21 (2018/2019). If you have any additional questions or concerns regarding the information below, please reach out to

ch o

your Dedicated Erate Specialist for further assistance.

Funding Year 20 (7/1 /2017-6/20/2018)

FRN Service Service Committed Total Funding | Percentage FRN Status
Provider Funding Amount Received of Funding Notes
Received
1799033764 Loca! AT&T $326.79 $326.70 100% Complete, 100% of Erate credits
Service | received =
179803377C MVoiP Jive 548460 $5,484.60 100% Complete, 100% of Erate credits
Service received
1795033784 | High Speed Comcast $13,171.36 $13,176.60 100% Complete, 100% of Erate credits
Data- received
Community
Day
1799033799 Cellular Verizon $65.95 - - Per service provider, $24.76
Voice Wireless received in credits. 1/17/2019-
Service warking on SPAC. Service
Provider has until 2/26/2015 1o
- invoice USAC.
1799061821 | Flamilton ES SHI $6,523.95 $5,474.80 84% Per service provider, all Erate
International credits recetved
Corp
1799061831 Hamilton SHI $10,486.06 $10,486.06 100% Complete, 100% of Erate credits
HS International received
Corp
1799112684 | IC to BMIC SHI - - - Replaced FRN 1799061791.
for Ella International Update needed. Form 500 filed.
Barkley Corp FRN cancelled 1/16/2019.
1799112685 | IC to BMIC SHI - - - Replaced FRN 1799061810.
Hamilton International Update Needed. Form 500 filed.
Community Corp FRN cancelled 1/16/2019.
Day
1799067608 | High Speed AT&T $637.20 $53.99 8% Complete. Per Service Provider,
Internet the district disconnected this
account in 7/2017.
1799067643 | High Speed Comcast $86,514.91 $81,879.92 95% Per service provider, all Erate
Data credits received.
Total $123,210.73 $116,876.67 94.9%

BEN 16055109
Page 10of 2




NFEHNBTY

COMMUNICATIONS AND CONSULTING

Funding Year 21 (7/1/2018-6/30/2019)
FRN Service Service

Commiitted Total Funding | Percentage FRN Status
Provider Funding Amount Received of Funding Notes
Received

1899002614 Local AT&T $178.37 $68.00 38% Service Provider has until
Service 10/28/2019 to invoice USAC.

1899002619 MVolP Jive $2,369.63 $762.38 32% Service Provider has until
Service 10/28/2019 to invoice USAC.

1899002627 Cellular Verizon $9.22 - - Per service provider, $1.04
Voice Wireless received in credits. 1/17/2019-
Service working on SPAC. Service

Provider has until 10/28/2019
to invoice USAC.

1899002686 Bundled Comcast $86,432.08 $41,557.89 48% Service Provider has until
Internet 10/28/2019 to invoice USAC.
Access

1899002689 | High Speed Comcast $13,213.91 $7,346.84 56% Service Provider has until
Data- 10/28/2019 to invoice USAC.

B Community

J Day

= Total | $102,203.21 $49,73541 | | 48.1%

BEN 16055109
Page 2 of 2




FNFINLTY

‘COMMUNI*CATMS AND CONSULTING

Utilization Report as of 01/23/19
HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT (16055109)

Funding Year 2017 {(July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2618}

FRN
1799033764
1799033770
1799033784
1789033739
1799061791
1799061810
1799061621
1798061831
1799192684
1799112685
1799067608
1799067643

Totai

Funded
$326.70
$5,484.60

$13,171.38
$65.95
$0.00
$0.00
$8,525.95
$10,486.06
s0.00
$0.00
$637.20
$86,514.9)
$123,210.73

iitilized
$326.70
$5,484.60
£13470.80
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
 $5,474.80
$10,486.06
$0.00
$0.00
$53.99
$81,879.92
$116,876.67

Service Provider
Pacitic Bell jelephone Comparny

Jive Communications, Inc.

Comcast Business Communications

Vorizon 1o (Calico P Wi
{Celicc Parnership)

SHI Intemational Corpo-
SHI Intemational Corpo.

St intematlonal oo,
SHI Intemnational Corpo.
SHI Intematianal Carpo.
SHI Intemational Corpo.

Pacific Bell Telephone Company

. Comeast Business Communications

Funding Year 2017

Funding Year 2048 {July 1, 2018 - June 36, 2019)

FRN
1899002614
1898002612
1892002627
1899002686
1899002689

Totat

Total

Funded
$178.37
$2,369.63
$9.22
$86,432.08
$13,213.91
$102,208.21

$225,413.94

Utilized
$68.00
$762.38
$0.00
$41,557.89
$7,346.84
$49,735.11

$166,611.78

Service Provider

Pacific Bell Telephone Company
Jive Communications, Inc.

Verizon less (Cellca Partnership)

Gomeast Business Cammunications

Comeast Business Communications

Funding Year 2013

- - HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Page 1/1

e e ]
S — 100 %
e
0%

0.00 %

0.00 %
e
=R
0.00 %

0.00%

847 %

R 5.5 %

I 2c.12 %

3217 %

0%

48.08 %
556 %



ABSTRACT: GEAR UP GRANT PROPOSAL
Applicant Name: University of California, Davis
UC Davis GEAR UP Rural Valley Partnership Project

The UC Davis GEAR UP Rural Valley Partnership Project (GU) will focus all efforts on a
rural and depressed agricultural area of the Northern Sacramento Valley of California. The
project proposes to serve 1741 students in two cohort groups of 6th and 7th graders enrolled at
the seven (7) high poverty middle schools including Hamilton Elementary, C.K. Price Middle,
Williams Upper Elementary, Willows Intermediate, George T Egling Middle, Lloyd Johnson
Junior High, and Vista Preparatory. These cohorts will feed into Hamilton High, Orland High,
Williams Junior Senior High, Willows High, Colusa High, Pierce High, and Red Bluff High
schools resulting in seven-year “pathways” of GU Participants from middle school to
postsecondary education. The region has some of the lowest postsecondary education attainment
rates in the State of California and a very high severity of need.

Goal 1- Increase The Academic Performance & Preparation For Post-Secondary Education Of
GEAR UP Students, with the following objectives: 50% of GU cohort will pass Integrated

Math 1 by the end of 9th grade, 35% of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 2 by the end of
th
10th grade, 30% of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 3 by the end of the 11 grade.

Goal 2 - Increase The Rate of High School Graduation and Enrollment In Postsecondary
Education with the following objectives: 90% of GU cohort will graduate from high school.
75% of GU cohort will enroll in postsecondary education, 45% of GU cohort will place into
college-level Math and English without need for remediation, 70% of GU cohort in college

will persist from fall to fall.

Goal 3 - Increase GEAR UP Students” and Their Families’ Knowledge Of Post- Secondary

Education Options, Preparation, And Financing with the following objectives: 50% of GU

cohort and parents will demonstrate knowledge of available financial aid and the costs

postsecondary education, 50% of GU cohort will demonstrate knowledge of the importance of

pursuing and the process in enrolling in postsecondary education, 30% of Parents of GU

cohort will actively engage in activities associated with assisting students in their academic

preparation for college.
The project also focuses on reduction of remediation and increasing postsecondary persistence.
The Project has a large focus on partner and community collaboration through the formation of a
GEAR UP Advisory Board for culture change and create vertical teaming and alignment to
Institutes of Higher Education. The Partners of the Project include: Shasta Community College,
Chico State University, Expect More Tehama, College Options Inc.,Glenn County Office of
Education, Tehama County Department of Education, Colusa County Office of Education, Zion
Christian Ministries, National University, California Education Round Table Intersegmental
Coordinating Committee, CoBro Inc, Red Bluff Union Elementary School District, Red Bluff
High School District, Hamilton Unified School District, Willows Unified School District, Colusa
Unified School District, Pierce Unified School District, Williams Unified School District, and

Orland Unified School District.




GEAR UP Rural Valley Partnership
UC Davis

Goals & Priorities

Goal 1- Increase The Academic Performance & Preparation For Post-Secondary Education Of
GEARUP S"" ats with the following objectives: 50% of GU cohort will pass integrated Math 1 by

Lt lh}

the end of 8" grade, 35% of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 2 by the end of 10th grade, 30%
of GU cohort will pass Integrated Math 3 by the end of the 11 grade

Goal 2 - Increase The Rate of High School Graduation and Enroliment in Postsecondary
Education with the following objectives: 90% of GU cohort will graduate from high school. 75% of
GU cohort will enroll in postsecondary education, 45% of GU cohort will place into college-leve!
Math and English without need for remediation, 70% of GU cohort in college will persist from fall

to fall.

Goal 2 - Increase GEAR UP Students’” and Their Families’ Knowledge Of Post- Secondary Education
Options, Preparation, And Financing with the following objectives: 50% of GU cohort and parents
will demonstrate knowledge of available financial aid and the costs postsecondary education, 50%
of GU cohort will demonstrate knowledge of the importance of pursuing and the p-'ocess in
enrolling in postsecondary education, 30% of Parents of GU cohort will actively engage in activities
aSSGCiaLEd with assisting students in their academic preparation for college.

Absolute Priority Projects

Priority 1: Providing work-based learning experiences that align with in-demand industry sectors or
occupations. The Project will implement activities through business and community relationships to
provide internships that align with in-demand industry sectors and occupations. (Agriculture,

Transportation, Distribution, etc.)

Priority 2: Promoting Science, Technology, Engineering, or Math (STEM) Education. The project will
work to support student mastery of pre-requisites to ensure success in STEM fields including
computer science. The Project will promote data sharing and collaboration through our Institute of
Higher Education Partners to support our Target Schools to address issues of low rigor in the

mastery of pre-requisites.

Priority 3: Protecting Freedom of speech and encouraging respectful interactions in a safe
educational environment, or fostering the knowledge and promoting the development of skills that
prepare students to be informed, thoughtful, and productive citizens. The project will implement a
Public Speaking curriculum that satisfies this priority focus area.



& Replyall|v [ Delete Junk|v o

RE: Teacher Donation Request

Tae Kang <TKang@harborfreight.com> & O Replyall |v

Yesterday, 2:25 PM
Andrew Martin ¥

T ?(’

Inbox

To help protect your privacy, some content in this message has been blocked. To re-enable the blocked features, click here.

To always show content from this sender, click here.

Label: Purge all emails older than 6 months (6 months) Expires: 7/28/2019 3:25 PM

HFT Donation Documen... v
119 KB

¥ Show all 1 attachments (119 KB) Download Save to OneDrive - Hamilton Unified School District

HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS

Hello, Mr. Martini

We’re pleased to let you know that your request for a donation from Harbor Freight Tools has been approved —-for a
$200 gift card! We're impressed by the work you do and applaud your commitment to your classroom and school.
Due to unforeseen circumstances and a high volume of requests, we deeply apologize for the delay in review and

getting word back to you.

In order for us to fulfill your request as quickly as possible, please send a completed donation documentation letter to

tkang@harborfreight.com

Please make sure to include the school/district’s Tax ID number and in the “Please describe...” section—please just

put down “S$200 gift card donation”
We will let you know as soon as we’ve processed your donation and we will do this as quickly as possible!

Thank you for all of the good work you're doing. We share your charitable spirit and wish you great success in the

future.
Regards,

Lang
Harbor Freight Tools
9

xttps://outlook.ofﬁceSBS.com/owa/projection.aspx 1/3



aviZvis N, 1AVl iIFl wuliauvis mwWwwyuootl

$ Replyall|v @ Delete Junk[v  eee
HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS

Tools for Schools

This e-mail, its content and any files transmitted with it are intended salely for the addressee(s) and are PRIVILEGED and CONFIDENTIAL. Access by any other

party is unauthorized without the express prior written permission of Harbor Freight Tools. If you have received this e-mail in error you may net copy, disclose to

Y FL N 7
t(s), if any and notify the

any third party or use the contents, attachments or information in any way. Piease deiete aii copies of the e-mail and the attachment(s)

sender. Thank You

From: Site Visitor Imailto:amartin@husdschools.org]
Sent: Monday, November 05, 2018 3:20 PM

To: tooisforschools@harborfreight.com

Subject: Teacher Donatiofn Request

Teacher Donation Request
Date: November 5, 2018, 11:20 pm

Name of Organization:
Hamilton City High School

Address: 620 Canal Street
City: Hamilton City

State: California

Zip: 85851

Contact Name: Andrew Martin

Employee Email: amartin@husdschools.org

Contact Phone: 5305925029

The school’s website:
https://www.husdschools.org/

How many years have you been a teacher?:
1

What type of Public High Schools is this?:
comprehensive

What skilled trades program will this support?:
10 welding

https://outlook.office365.com/owa/projection.aspx 2/3



& Replyall|v i Delete Junk|v e

hand-tools

How many total students are in your skilled trades program?:
76-100

What percent of your school's students are eligible for the Free and Reduced Lunch

Program?:
0-25

How did you hear about us:
friend

Is there anything else you’d like to share about this request?:

This is my first year teaching at Hamilton City and have been working on getting the shop in working
condition again. Most of the small hand tools and are damaged and are not safe to use. I'm looking
to replace the damaged equipment and get whole sets of wrenches and drills along with various
other items in the shop. | would also like to do some cold metal projects but do not have a scroll or
metal bender that is in working condition. We are short on multiple safety items including ear plugs
and safety glasses along with welding supplies of many kind. We do have a budget for these things
but it is very limited and 1 am using a good portion of it to do necessary repairs for the safety of the
shop. | appreciate you time and anything would be a great help to get this shop program running.

Thank you-Andrew Martin

f i :
b J

et e S — [%7b%7bstore%20url=}_____
Harbor Freight Tools | P.O. Box 6010 | Camarillo, CA 93011-3010 | (800) 444-3353

B R B EOE B

S

11

tps://outlook.ofﬁce365.com/owa/projection.aspx 3/3



["\'r‘ o\ |fan B ;?]L\ Sek ea\ Name of Charity/Organization

@16 Ceanal Sheeed Physical Address of Charity/Organization
i (No P.O. Boxes.) )
Healben Tk~ 5 Ch 4545 City, State, Zip of Charity/Qrganization
b3 — 6o zx 147 Tax ID of Charity/Organization
S36~ o X7, 6\ Phone Number of Charity/Organization

To: Harbor Freight Tools USA, inc.

This document serves to acknowledge the donation being offered by Harbor Freight Tools.
The coniribution is tax-deductible to the extent allowed by law. No goods or services were
provided in exchange for this donation.

Please describe the donation offered below:

:g 20O 3\"\1“\‘ < Qf‘}_’ (l/Cl-f\é LSRN

Sincerely, W
A Néf{"\r‘ {M B \\‘.v\ Name M S Signed

Aj feackher Title l /3 é/ [ 9 Date




Low Performing Block Grant Plan 2018

The LPSBG allocates $300 million for LEAs, including county offices of education
(COEs), school districts, and charter schools (both directly and locally funded) for
the benefit of identified students during fiscal year (FY) 2018-19. These funds are
designated to address the persistent achievement gap in California’s public schools
and to provide resources and evidence-based practices to initiate and sustain
authentic systemic change. More information on the LPSBG can be found at the

following link: https://www.cde.ca.gov/fa/aa/ca/lpsbgprginfo.asp

A school district, county office of education, or charter school shall develop a plan
describing how the funds will increase or improve evidence-based services for the
pupils identified pursuant to subdivision (d) to accelerate increases in academic
achievement, and how the effectiveness of the services will be measured. Grant
recipients shall report to the Superintendent on or before March 1, 201 9,
regarding the adopted plan to use the grant funds to increase the academic
performance of pupils identified pursuant to subdivision (d).

In the template, please describe the school’s plan for how the funds will increase or
improve evidence-based services for the pupils identified pursuant to subdivision (d) to

accelerate increases in academic achievement.

HUSD will use Accelerated Math to increase skills based practice for grades 6 through grades
12, including Ella Barkley students. All students enrolled in a math class will be assessed via
Renaissance STAR math then assigned practice through Accelerated Math. Students will
have opportunity to complete this work during scheduled intervention times and math support
classes. The Professional Learning Communities process will be used for staffto adjust

instruction as needed for students below grade level.

13



14

How will the effectiveness of the services be measured?

Student progress will be monitored on a formative basis through Renaissance STAR system
and progress through Accelerated Math. Summative assessment will be measured through
CAASPP scores for 6th, Tth, 8th, and 11th grade mathematics.

Describe in the box below how the services align with and are described in the school
district’s Local Controi and Accountability Plan (LCAP) required pursuant to Section
52060.

These furids will support and enhance services for pupils identified as low-performing on state
mathematics assessments and who are not otherwise identified for supplemental grant
funding under our Local Control Funding Formula.

The Low Performing Block Grant wil directly support our LCAP Goal #1 Conditions of
Learning: Provide highly qualified instructors, books/supplies/materials and district
infrastructure fo promote college and career readiness to help all students succeed. More
specifically with Action #7 by adding skills based practice to our additional math support
classes. Additionally student data will timely, available and actionable for teacher use during
professional learning community times.

Stakeholder Input

To ensure community input, the plan shall be discussed and adopted at the regularly
scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school district, the county board of

education, or the governing board of the charter school.

This plan was developed with input from meetings with the HUSD mathematics department
and district leadership.

Presented at the February 27, 2019 regularly scheduled HUSD Board of Trustee Meeting.




Services & Proposed Expenditures
Complete the following table for each of the services and expenditures. Add rows to the

table as needed.
Services Expenditures

Costs for teacher release (5 teachers @ $900
$180 for 4 hrs) for PD summer 2019

Renaissance Learning Accelerated Math $10,928
subscription (3 year)
To be used at the Elementary to offset costs | $995
of Accelerated Math

Professional Develop for use of application $1,000

Total $13,823

EC 41570:
(f) (1) As a condition for receiving grant funds pursuant to this section, a school

district, county office of education, or charter school shall develop a plan describing
how the funds will increase or improve evidence-based services for the pupils
identified pursuant to subdivision (d) to accelerate increases in academic
achievement, and how the effectiveness of the servicés will be measured. The plan
shall include information regarding how the servicés align with and are described in
the school district’s tocal control and accountability plan required pursuant to
Section 52060, the county superintendent of schools’ local control and
accountability plan required pursuant to Section 52066, or the charter school’s local
control and accountability plan required pursuant to Section 47605 or 47605.6 and
Section 47606.5, as applicable. To ensure community and stakeholder input, the
plan shall be discussed and adopted at a regularly scheduled méeting of the
governing board of the school district, the county board of education, or the
governing body of the charter school.

(2) Grant recipients shall report to the Superintendent on or before March 1, 2019,
regarding the adopted plan to use the grant funds to increase the academic
performance of pupils identified pursuant to subdivision (d). On or before November
1, 2021, grant recipients shall report to the Superintendent regarding the
implementation of the plan, the strategies used, and whether those strategies
increased the academic performance of the pupils identified pursuant subdivision

(d).

15



|  (10siApe dp) JeeD
_ " ypm yiom poddns o) 000'01$ 03 dn uels [ejo

(uosinpe dn Jee
i yum Eo\s uoddns o1} 0000 ;. E Q: EE@ jeiog
_” 25 }, 0 |eacsddy ,mm__‘uic.mlﬂ.m_,..ﬂ.. | . . loogie$i 3 g rw o e __pﬁbﬁ_m
s1opelb uLng (aBejjon anng) du pjol ” 000'}
Aluo Aynoey speib Y9 (symsul 00s'e
[0 Jauwiwns) BuiBpo| pue joael ]
Auo-AynoeyylL/uig (siuedioned g)snyiisul Jawwns . 00001 seinjpuadx3 BunelsdO JaylO pue SeoIAIeg
131D :uswdojeasc] jeuoissajoid _

U39 JUBLIND J0j SIaLUE|d | 005 | s9|ddng pue syooq

. 0 -|||.M.i ~ sjyeusg sakodwg

[ o  selieles payisse|o

(uoneoyou [erosdde i 000y . solie|es "HeD -

Buipuad--jueisy Aq psiiuwiied !
i oM Jawwns L_o»_ mucmuum Nu_ |

Py

. . (popaau jeroidde
i -aid 10108110 dN HVID) 000°6Z$ 01 dn :uels) (810
. - . sined on

£ 1B

2 Jeo

6665-0009

666%-0001
666€-000€
666¢-000¢C
6661-0001

| 2pogwelgo

L Jea A

ueby |eas|4

| ieuweN vl

16



Develop Teacher Expertise to Amplify English Learners' Access
to Rigorous, Ambitious Learning Opportunities

holds professional development institutes for educators focused on the development
~f teacher expertise to engage English Leamers and all other students in deep,
insferable learning. During the summer of 2019, we are excited to offer seven institutes

over two weeks in San Francisco.

Course Offerings

Week 1: July 15 - July 19, 2019

1. Building the Base, Secondary Literacy - [
2. Building the Base, Elementary Literacy ;
3. Beginning ESL, Secondary |
4. Site and District Leadership in the Education of English Leamers [
&. Building the Bass, Mathematics P

Kathryn Thomas, Principal
Hamilton Elementary School
2 ‘oay Ave.

Han n City, CA 95951



=2
0

2,

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

North State Aris Education Consortium
Butte County Office of Education

and
i {!’-[’tn:(ﬁ',n Ua-'{r’r-l SJam’ 0,‘5. .'.‘a!“
1.-  General e
This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into between

(“Disirici”) and Butie County Office of Education (“BCOE”) as partnass in the North State Ants
Education Consortium (NSAEC) as of January I, 2019.

The purpose of this MOU is to establish = forma! working relationship between the District and BCOE
and to set forth the operative conditions that govern this partnership.

onsibilities = ral
A. BCOE agrees to the following:
' 1. Provide grant coordination through the NSAEC Direct/Administrator;
2. Be available for pro guidance throughout the grant periad;
3. Provide professional development in arts education implementation for up to three participating

teachers;

-B. District agrees to the following:
i.- Recrui i-3 paricipating teachers to Program;
2. Purchase arts equipment and/or smusical instruments included in the funding budget;

3. Ensure participaiing teachers complete requirements in Appendix B;

4. Responsibilities — Fiscal

- A, BCOE agrees to:
1. allocate funding for arts equipment, musical instruments, and/or travel to the summer institute
in the amount indicated ia Appendix A;
2. provide a stipend of $2,000 per participating teacher for up to three participants;
B. District agrees to:
1. provide a budget for NSAEC funding allocation aligned with allowable expenditures (arts
equipment, musical instruments, travel to the summer institute, ne indirect costs); submit to
BCOE;

2, commit to expending all NSAEC funds on grant-approved expenditures by August 30, 2019;
provide a preliminary expenditure report by May 30, and final expenditure report by August
30, 2019; submit to BCOE;

4. process teacher stipends through payroll for up to three participating teachers;

W
e}

5. Other Conditions
Any and ali products developed by BCOE and/er via the Program are the exclusive property of BCOE.

District, their employees, staff, and subcontractors shall not have the right to disseminate, market, or
otherwise use the products without the written permission of BCOE.

6. - - -Relationship of the Parties
Each party enters into this MOU as, and shall continue to be, independent agencies. Under no

circumstances shall the District, or any District employee or contractor (collectively, the “District

Naorth State Arts Education Consortium MOU 2812 Page § of 3




Parties”) be considered an employee of BCOE within the meaning of any federal, state, or local law or
regulation including, but not limited to, laws or regulations goveming unemployment insurance, old age
benefits, workers' compensation, industrial iliness or accident coverage, taxes, or labor and employment
in general, Under no circumstances shall District Parties look to BCOE as an employer. District Parlics
shall not be entitled to any benefits accorded to BCOE employees, including, without limitation, workers'

compensation, disability insurance, vacation or sick pay.

7. Term
The effective daté of this MOU is January 1 - September 30, 2019. This MOU will be in effect for nine

months from the start date indicated above. The terms of this MOU shall remain in foree wnless mutually
amended. Either party may terminate this MOU upon written notice submitted to the Council no Jater than
ninety (90) days priot to the start of the s¢hool year.

8. Indemnification
District shall and does hereby indemnify, defend, and hold harmless BCOE, and BCOE’s officers,

employees, agents and representatives from and against any and all claims, demands, Josses, costs,
expenses, obligations, liabilities and damages, including, without limitation, interest, penaltics, and
reasonable attorney fees and costs, that BCOE may incur or sulfer and that rise from, or are rclated 1o any
breach or failure of District {o perform any of the representations, warrantics and agreements contained in

this MOU,

9. California Law
This MOU shall be governed by and the rights, duties and obligations ol the parties shall be determined
and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California, The parties further agree that any

action or proceeding brought to enforce the terms and conditions of this MOU shall be maintained in

Butte County, Califorpia.

10, Ruole and Regulations

All rules and régulations of each party’s Governing Board and all federal, state, and local laws,
ordinances and regulations are to be observed strictly by staff’ members providing services pursuant o this

MOU

11. Nofice
Any notice required or permitted to be given under this MOU shall be deemed 10 have been piven, served

and received il given in writing and either personally delivered or deposited in the United States mail,
registered or cerlified mail, postage prepaid, retum receips required.

12. Entire Agreement of Parties
This MOU constilutes the entire agrecment between the parties and supersedes all prior discussions,

negotiations and agreements, whether oral or written. This MOU may be amended or madified only by

instrument by botli p

a wri Hes,
/
BY 72 e (] W
Szgmune of Authorized Dlstncl Official

tre of Authorued/ﬂCOE Official
By Jeancte Spentes o CHALLES Mo [7C J/
rinted Na

Printed Name ;7
2/13/149 (I(C'OQ @/(/QC) /C;

Pate;

Narth State Arts Education Consortium MOU 2019 Pipe 2ol 5

19




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AUDIT REPORT
JUNE 30, 2018

San Diego

Los Angeles s ol il ol =~
5 christy@white -
A

San Francisco PHOFESSTONAL ;e;;}jﬁf?m’“‘""

Bay Area ACGQOUNTANGY CORFPORATION



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report

NN

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds — Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position .......ccecveeeeeeeecennn-
Governmental Funds — Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.........c.c.coecc.c
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balances to the Statement of Activities

Fidudary Funds — Statement of Net Position

Fiduciary Funds — Statement of changes in Net Position

Notes to Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

General Fund — Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalSTRS....

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalPERS

Schedule of District Contributions - CalSTRS..........

Schedule of District Contributions - CalPERS .....cccuiievierieereseeseesssseesesessenssressaseessans

Notes to Required Supplementary Information

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA)

Schedule of INStructHONal T ....cvueec oo cceteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeesereeeensessseesneas

Schedule of Financial Trends and ANALYSIS .........ovceveemreereernererensreracsnsersssansasressens

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

Combining Statements — Non-Major Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet ..

Combining Statement of Reve:nues, Expendltures, and Changes in Fund Balances

11
12

.13

14
15

16
18
19
20

55
56
57
58

.59

60
61

... 63

64
65
66

.67

68

... 69

Local Education Agency Organization Structire .........ceeeeeiveiersensennens

Notes to Supplementary INfOIMAtioN.........ocieurcrcrrerrretescrercnaresses s sersrssssrasssssnsssssisssasens

21



22

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITGRS” REPORTS

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Finandial Statements Performed in Accordance with Governiment AUditing SRRAAYAS :psiuemswivivsivermmsiviviresisis 71
Report on State Compliance : 73

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SUMMALY OFf AUGTEOTS RESUILS 1. orrrrrvuusiererermmsessrsisesersasssnesbunsonsasse s e L8281 00000 76
Financial Statement Findings 77
State Award Findings and Questioried Costs 78
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings ' 79




FINANCIAL SECTION

23



Michael D.-As!

lohn Whiteh

Heather Daud Rubio

da5 Ol

San Died

“staterments s listed in the table of contents.

christy{& i

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REFORT

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

Report en the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamiiton Unified School
District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Harmilton Unified School District’s basic financial

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statesments

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinions.
Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Hamilton Unified School District, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1 and 9 to the financial statements, in 2018 Hamilton Unified School District adopted new
accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information, such as management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes
in total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedules of
District contributions for pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not part of the basic finandial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with

sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Hamilton Unified School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in the table
of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

25



Other Reporting Required by Governinent Auditing Standards

Tn accordance with Governiment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 10, 2018 on our
consideration of Hamilton Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified
School DistrieV’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordarice with Government Auditing Standards in considering Hamilton Unified School District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

San Diego,.California
December 10, 2018



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of Hamilton Unified School District’s (District) financial performance provides an
overview of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. It should be read in conjunction

with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

P  The District’s total net position was $1,588,288 at June 30, 2018. This was a decrease of $533,963 from the
prior year after restatement.
> Overall revenues were $9,080,650 which was less than expenses of $9,614,613.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Components of the Financials Section

Management's Basic Financial Requited
Discussion & Supplementary
] Statements ]
Analysis Information
Government-Wide Fund Financial Notes to the
Financial Statements Statements Financial Statements
Summary < > Detail




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

This annual report consists of three parts - Management’s Discussion and Analysis {(this section), the basic finar
statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide 2 comprehensive overview
Af kb e i 4] aial

of the District. The basic financial stateménts are comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial
information from different perspectives:

5 Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-term
and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position.

T
- S AN

_—

N - P o o . P ) PUIRETE TR . | . P ST B ar A bt
P Fund financiai statements focus on reporting the individual parts of District operations in more dete
fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

» Governmental Funds provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s

programs.

b iduciary Funds report balances for which the District is a custodian or frusfee of the funds, such as
Assodiated Student Bodies and pension funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required and other supplementary
information that further explain and support the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statemenis

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expernses are accounted for in the statemetit of activities, regardiess
of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statemnents report the District’s net posiﬁon and how it has changed. Net position is one
way to measure the District’s financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net
position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

The government-wide financial staterrients of the District include governmental activities. All of the District’s basic
services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general administration. Local
control formula funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The District’s net position was $1,588,288 at June 30, 2018, as reflected in the table below. Of this amount, $(5,196,028)
was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt covenants and
enabling legislation that limit the Governing Board’s ability to use that net position for day-to-day operations.

Governmental Activities
2018 2017 Net Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 3,704,928 $ 4234623 $ (529,695)
Capital assets 5,951,927 5,810,531 141,396
Total Assets 9,656,855 10,045,154 (388,299)
- DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,609,278 1,591,614 1,017,664
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 701,972 519,302 182,670
Long-term liabilities 9,472,809 7,655,504 1,817,305
Total Liabilities 10,174,781 8,174,806 1,999,975
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 503,064 361,159 141,905
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,454,727 5,240,731 213,996
Restricted 1,329,589 1,368,668 (39,079)
Unrestricted (5,196,028) (3,508,596) (1,687,432)
Total Net Position $ 1,588,288 $ 3,100,803 $ (1,512,515)




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL PISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSICN AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
Changes in Net Position

The results of this year’s operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. The table
below takes the information from the Statement and rearranges it slightly, so you can see our total revenues,
expenses, and special items for the year.

Governmental Activities
2018 2017 NetChange
REVENUES
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 32,677 $ 37577 % (4,900)
Operating grants and contributions 1,175,415 1,747,334 671,919
General revenues
Property taxes 1,561,966 1,490,547 71419
Unrestricted federal and state aid 5,926,227 6,357,681 431,454)
Cther 384,365 219,840 164,525
Total Revenues 9,080,650 9,852,979 {772,329)
EXPENSES
Instruction 5,062,754 5,148,292 (85,538)
Tnstruction-related services 1,245189 1324141 (78,952)
Pupil services 961,545 861,522 100,023
General administration 743,046 632,710 110,336
Plant services 938,943 1,743,213 (804,270)
Debt service 21,639 25,160 (3,521)
Other outgo 641497 597,451 44,046
Total Expenses 9,614,613 10,332,489 (717 876)
Change in net position (633,963) (479,5103 (54,453)
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated™ 2,122,251 3,580,313 (1,458,062)
Net Position - Ending $ 1,588,288 $ 3,100,803 $ (1,512,515)

* Beginning Net Position was restated for the 2018 year only



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)

Changes in Net Position (continued)

The total cost of all our governmental activities this year was $9,614,613, while net cost of services was only $8,406,521
(refer to the table below). The amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through taxes was
only $1,561,966 because the cost was paid by other governments and organizations who subsidized certain programs

with grants and contributions.

Net Cost of Services
2018 2017

Instruction $ 4,634,749 % 4,140,739
Instruction-related services 1,061,306 1,170,037
Pupil services 477 497 416,766
General administration 711,259 609,950
Plant services 858,574 1,587,646
Debt service 21,639 25,160
Transfers to other agencies 641,497 597,280

Total Expenses $ 8,406,521 $ 8,547,578

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’'S MAJOR FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District
completed this year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $3,128,176, which is less than last
year’s ending fund balance of $3,842,342. The District’s General Fund had $665,777 less in operating revenues than

expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018.

CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 2017-2018

During the fiscal year, budget revisions and appropriation transfers are presented to the Board for their approval on
a regular basis to reflect changes to both revenues and expenditures that become known during the year. In addition,
the Board of Education approves financial projections included with the Adopted Budget, First Interim, and Second
Interim financial reports. The Unaudited Actuals reflect the District’s financial projections and current budget based

on State and local financial information.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capitai Asseis
By the end of 2017-2018 the District had invested $5,951,927 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Governmental Activides

2618 2017 Net Change
CAPITAL ASSETS

Land N $ 293,887 $ 293,887 § -

Construction in progress 439,471 - 439471

Land improvements 604,362 604,362 =

Buildings & improvements 9,278,697 9,278,697 -

Furniture & equipment 1,629,376 1,600,215 29,155
Accumulated depreciation (6,293,860)  (5,966,630) {327,230)

Total Capital Asseis $ 5951327 $ 5810531 $ 341,396

Long-Term Liabilities

At year-end, the District had $9,472,809 in long-term liabilities, a 9.71% increase from last year — as shown in the table
below. (More detailed information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in footnotes to the finandial
statements.)

Governmental Activities

2018 2017 Net Change
ONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Total general obligation bonds $ 497200 $ 569,800 $ (72,600)
Early retirement incentive 141,220 185,432 (44,212)

Compensated absences 30,882 18,910 11,972
Total OPEB liability™* 1,147,101 1,217,672 (70,571)

Net pension liability 7,772,718 6,759,054 1,013,664

Less: current portion of long-term debt (116,312) (116,812) 500

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 9472809 $ 8634056 $ 838753

*Total OPEB liability for 2017 was restated in order to record the District’s total OPEB liability in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 75 which supersedes GASB Statement No. 45 for the year ended
June 30,2018.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’'S BUDGET

At the ime these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several circumstances
that could affect its future financial health.

The State’s economy continues to be strong but a new governor could change the fiscal policy for the funding of
public education, within the boundaries of Proposition 98. Past fiscal allocations had included higher than expected
funding but on-going funding may not be as strong. The UCLA Anderson Forecast (fune 2018) noted that the “era
of ultra-low interest rates has passed and the economy is at full employment,” which creates difficulty sustaining
continued growth at the rate recently experienced. And, according to the California Legislative Analyst’s Office,

there are concerns about a possible mild recession.

Landmark legislation passed in Year 2013 reformed California school district finance by creating the Local Control
Funding Formula (LCFF). The LCFF is designed to provide a flexible funding mechanism that links student
achievement to state funding levels. The LCFF provides a per pupil base grant amount, by grade span, that is
augmented by supplemental funding for targeted student groups in low income brackets, those that are English
language learners and foster youth. The 2018-19 adopted State Budget fully funded the LCFF funding gap two years

ahead of schedule.

Factors related to LCFF that the District is monitoring incdlude: (1) estimates of funding in the next budget year and
beyond; (2) the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) that aims to link student accountability measurements
to funding allocations; (3) ensuring the integrity of reporting student data through the California Longitudinal Pupil
Achievement Data System (CALPADs); and, (4) meeting annual compliance and audit requirements.

The District participates in state employee pensions plans, PERS and STRS, and both are underfunded. The District’s
proportionate share of the liability is reported in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2018. The amount of
the liability is material to the financial position of the District. To address the underfunding issues, the pension plans
continue to raise employer rates in future years and the increased costs are significant.

Enrollment can fluctuate due to factors such as population growth, competition from private, parochial, inter-district

transfers in or out, economic conditions and housing values. Losses in enrollment will cause a school district to lose
operating revenues without necessarily permitting the district to make adjustments in fixed operating costs.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2018-19 fiscal year.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact the District’s Business Office,
Hamilton Unified School District, 620 Canal Street, PO Box 488; Hamilton City, CA 95951.

10

33



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
VInvé”f_it’ory
Capital assets, not depreciated
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows rélated to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB

Total Deferred Ouiflows of Resouices

LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities
Long-term liabilities, current portion
Long-term liabilities, non-current portion
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows reldted to pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Capital projects
Debt service
Educational programs
All others
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11

W
H>

Governmental
Activities

253,677
6,388
733,358
5,218,569

9,656,855

2,494,861
114,417

2,609,278

585,660
116,312
9,472,809

10,174,781

503,064

503,064

5,454,727

103,436
147,080
923,437
155,636

(5,196,028)

1,588,288




t

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YFAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Instruction $ 5,062,754 $ 421 $ 427584 § (4,634,749)
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration 299 - - (299)
Instructional library, media, and technology 219,168 745 - (218,423)
School site administration 1,025,722 398 182,740 (842,584)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 167,852 - - (167,852)
Food services 592,717 30,352 451,678 (110,687)
All other pupil services 200,976 - 2,018 (198,958)
General administration
All other general administration 743,046 - 31,787 (711,259)
Plant sexvices 938,943 761 79,608 (858,574)
Interest on long-term debt 21,639 - - (21,639)
Other outgo 641,497 - - (641,497)
Total Governmental Activities $ 9,614,613 $ 32,677 $ 1,175,415 (8,406,521)
General revenues
Taxes and subventions
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 1,488,371
Property taxes, levied for debt service 73,595
Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes 5,926,227
Interest and investment earnings 33,683
Miscellaneous 350,682
Subtotal, General Revenue 7,872,558
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (533,963)
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated 2,122,251

)

Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12

$ 1,588,288

35



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2018
Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 2,921,308 § 523555 § 3,444,863
Accounts receivable 186,055 67,622 253,677
Due from other funds 42,719 7,830 50,549
Stores inventory - 5,388 ' 6,388
Total Assets $ 3,150,082 $ 605395 $  3,755477
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities $ 567415 $ 9337 $ 576,752
Due to other funds 7,830 42,719 50,549
Total Liabilities 575,245 52,056 627,301
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 10,000 6,388 16,388
Restricted 825,070 513,427 1,338,497
Committed - 33,524 33,524
Assigned 207,735 - 207,735
Unassigned 1,532,032 - 1,532,032
Total Fund Balances 2,574,837 553,339 3,128,176
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances § 3,150,082 $ 605,395 $ 3,755477

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal statements.

35 13



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT

OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 3,128,176

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital assets:
In governmental funds, only current asséts arereported. In the statement of net

position, all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated
$ 12,245,787

Capital assets
(6,293,860) 5,951,927

Accumulated depreciation

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the period
in which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide statement of activities, it
is recognized in the period that it is incurred. The additional liability for
unmatured interest owing at the end of the period was: (8,908)

Long-term liabilities: .
In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of net
position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. Long-term
liabilities relating to governmental activities consist of:

Total general obligation bonds

Early retirement incentive

Compensated absences

Total OPEB liability

Net pension liability

% 497,200

141,220

30,882

1,147,101
7,772,718 (9,589,121)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to
pensions are not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the
statement of net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

$ 2,494,861
(503,064) 1,991,797

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB:
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB

arenot reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of

net position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB are
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB $
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB

114,417
- 114,417

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ 1,588,288

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finandal statements.

14



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal sources
her state sources
Other local sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction
Instruction-related services

Instructional supervision and administration
Instructional library, media, and technology

School site administration
Pupil services
Home-to-schodl transportation
Food services
All other pupil services
General administration
Ali other general administration
Plant services
Fadilities acquisition and maintenance
Transfers to other agencies
Debt service
Principal
Triterest and other
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Cther Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Net Financing Scources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Neon-Major Total
Governmenial Governinental
General Fund Funds Funds

$ 7117478 § 53,066 $ 7,170,478
275214 467,503 742,717

760177 351,443 1,111,620

110,634 116,814 227,448
8,263,503 988,760 9,252,263
4,920,948 239,520 5,160,468

299 - 299

204,769 - 204,769
919,262 80,131 999,393

102,676 = 102,676

5,613 543,900 549,513

194,954 - 194,954

696,353 - 696,353

812,555 68,940 881,495

430,354 9,118 439472
641,497 - 641,497

- 72,600 72,600

= 22,940 22,940

8,929,280 1,037,149 9,966,429
(665,777) (48,389) (714,166)

- 36 36

- (36) (36)

(665,777) (48,389) (714,166)
3,240,614 601,728 3,842,342

$ 2,574,837 $ 553,339 % 3,128,176

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

15



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ (714,166)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from

amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay:
In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the
period when the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital
assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The
difference betw een capital outlay expenditures and depreciation expense for the period
Expenditures for capital outlay:
Depreciation expense:

$ 475,035
(333,639) 141,396

Debt service:
In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. In
the government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as
reductions of liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion of long- 72,600
Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period that it
becomes due. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the
period it is incurred. Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less matured
interest paid during the period but owing from the prior period, was: 1,301

Compensated absences:
In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid
during the period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured
by the amount earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and

compensated absences earned, was: (11,972)

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):
In governmental funds, OPEB expenses are recognized when employer OPEB
contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on

the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB expenses and actual employer
OPEB contributions was: 184,988

(continued on next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16

39



40

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOGL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT O‘*’ REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF
ACTIVITEES, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2618

Pensions:
In governmental funds, pension costs arerecogrized when employer contributions are
made, in the government-wide statement of activities, penision costs are recognized ont
the accrual basis. This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and

employer contributions was:

Other liabilities not normally iquidated with current financial resources:
In the government-wide statements, expenses must be acerued in connection with any
liabilities incurred during the period that arenot expected to beliquidated with current
financial resources. Examples include special termination benefits such as retirement
incentives financed over time, and structured legal settlements. This year, expenses

incurred for such obligations were:

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

17

$

(252,322)

44,212

(533,963)



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due to student groups
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted
Total Net Position

Trust Funds Agency Funds
Private-Purpose Student Body
Trust Fund Fund
$ 32,636 § 163,671
32,636 §$ 163,671
- % 163,671
- 8 163,671
32,636
$ 32,636

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

18

41



42

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2618

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Other trust activities
Total Deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning
NetPosition -Ending

TrustFunds

Private-Puipose
TrustFund

5 10,409

10,409

9424

9424

985
31,651

$ -32,636




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Financial Reporting Entity

The Hamilton Unified School District (the “District”) accounts for its finandial transactions in accordance with
the polices and procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The
accounting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

(AICPA).

The District operates under a locally elected Board form of government and provides educational services to
grades K-12 as mandated by the state. A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component
units, and other organizations that are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The
primary government of the District consists of all funds, departments and agencies that are not legally separate
from the District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service, and student-related activities.

Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Districtis financdially accountable. Component
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District approves their
budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are other legally
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the
organization’s relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The District has no such component units.

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the primary government (the District). These statements include the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue,

and other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for each
function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with
a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations
that have been made in the funds have been reserved for the statement of activities. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting of operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not
classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues and
expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from the

general revenues of the District.

20

43



Ha
14

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 20618 _ _

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Presenfation {continued)

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds,
including its fidudiary funds.  Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and fiduciary = are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nen-major funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for activities that are governmental in nature. Governmental activities
are typically tax-supported and indude education of pupils, operation of food service and child development
programs, construction and maintenance of school facilities, and repayment of long-term debt.

Fidudary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity for others that
cannot be used to support the District's own programs.

Major Governmentai Fuinds

General Fund: The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all activities
except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. In keeping with the minicaum number of
funds principle, all of the District's activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason
to account for an activity in another fund. A District may have only one General Fund.

Non-Major Governmental Fands

Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. The District maintains the following special revenue funds:

Child Development Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues to
operate child development programs. All moneys received by the District for, or from the operation of, child
development services covered under the Child Care and Development Services Act (Education Code Section
8200 et seq.) shall be deposited into this fund. The moneys may be used only for expenditures for the
operation of child development programs. The costs incurred in the maintenance and operation of child
development services shall be paid from this fund, with accounting to reflect specific funding sources

(Education Code Section 8328).

Adult Education Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues for adult
education programs. Money in this fund shall be expended for adult education purposes only. Morneys
received for programs other than adult education shall not be expended for adult education (Education Code
Sections 52616[b] and 52501.5[a]).

21



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.

Basis of Presentation (continued)
Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

Special Revenue Funds (continued):

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local
resources to operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093). The Cafeteria Special
Revenue Fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the governing board as necessary for
the operation of the District's food service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and 38100).

Deferred Maintenance Fund: This fund is used to account separately for state apportionments and the
District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Sections 17582-17587). In
addition, whenever the state funds provided pursuant to Education Code Sections 17584 and 17585
(apportionments from the State Allocation Board) are insufficient to fully match the local funds deposited in
this fund, the governing board of a school district may transfer the excess local funds deposited in this fund
to any other expenditure classifications in other funds of the District (Education Code Sections 17582 and

17583).

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust

funds).

Capital Facilities Fund: This fund is used primarily to account separately for moneys received from fees
levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development (Education Code Sections
17620-17626). The authority for these levies may be county/city ordinances (Government Code Sections 65970~
65981) or private agreements between the District and the developer. Interest earned in the Capital Facilities

Fund is restricted to that fund (Government Code Section 66006).

Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects: This fund exists primarily to provide for the
accumulation of General Fund moneys for capital outlay purposes (Education Code Section 42840).

Debt Service Funds: Debt service funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: This fund is used for the repayment of bonds issued for the District
(Education Code Sections 15125-15262). The board of supervisors of the county issues the bonds. The proceeds
from the sale of the bonds are deposited in the county treasury to the Building Fund of the District. Any
premiums or accrued interest received from the sale of the bonds must be deposited in the Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund of the District. The county auditor maintains control over the District's Bond Interest and
Redemption Fund. The principal and interest on the bonds must be paid by the county treasurer from taxes

levied by the county auditor-controller.

22

45



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(. Basis of Presentation (continued)

‘iduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or agent
capacity for others that cannot be used to support the District's own programs. The key distinction between trust
and agency funds is that trust funds are subject te a trust agreemient that affects the degree of management
inivolvement and the length of time that the resoutces are heid.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund: The Private-Purpose Trust Fund is a scholarship trust fund, and consists only
of accounts such as cash and balancing net position accounts.

Student Bedy Fund: The Student Body Fund is an agency fund and, therefore, consists only of accounts such
as cash and balancing liability accounts, such as due to student groups. The student body itself maintains its
own general fund, which accounts for thié transactions of that entity in raising and expending money to
promote the general welfare, morale, and educational experiences of the student body (Education Code
Sections 48930-48938).

D. Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus

Government-Wide and Fiduciary Financial Statements

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Net Position equals assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
The net position should be reported as restricted when constrairits placed on its use are either externally imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position
restricted for other activities results from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.

Governmental Funds
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the

financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D.

Basis of Accounting — Measurement Focus (continued)

Revenues — Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and recejves essentially equal value, is
recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded
in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the resources
will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Generally, “available” means collectible within the current period or
within 60 days after year-end. However, to achieve comparability of reporting among California school districts
and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursements grants and corrections
to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available for school districts as

collectible within one year.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from the grants and entitlements is

recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange

transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Uneamed Revenue
Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available” criteria

for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet

and revenue is recognized.

Certain grants received that have not met eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. On the
governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are also

recorded as unearned revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures
On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified

accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related
fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified accrual basis
of accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as-expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted resources
are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they

are needed.

24

47



1=Y
X

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Posmon

LCash and Cash Equivalenis - .
The District’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on ha.nd demand deposits and short-term mvestments

with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments
Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair vaiue. Fair value is estimated based

on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost
or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county and State investment pools are determined by the

program sponsor.

Inventories
Tnventories are valued at historical cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmentai

fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net position, but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair acquisition value as of the date received. The
District maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The District does not own any infrastructure as defined
in GASB Statement No. 34. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do
not add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. All reported capital assets,
except for land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining

useful lives of the related capital assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings and Improvements 25-350 years
Furniture and Equipment 15-20 years
Vehicles 8 years

Interfund Balances
On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified

as "Due from other funds/Due to other funds.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities
columns of the statement of net position.

25



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position (continued)

Compensated Absences .
Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire

compensated. absence lability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental
funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events
such as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with
expendable available financial resource. These amounts are recorded in the fund from which the employees who

have accumulated leave are paid.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record
sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken because such benefits do not vest, nor is payment probable;
however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement benefits when

the employee retires.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial

statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a
timely manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)
For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB and deferred

inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense have been determined by an independent actuary. For
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit

terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles require the reported results must pertain to liability and asset
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date July 1,2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Measurement Period  July 1,2016 to June 30, 2017

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over
time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and
are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The amortization period differs depending on the source of gain
orloss. The difference between.projected and actual earnings is amortized on 4 straight-line basis over five years.
All other amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average expected remaining service lives of all
members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) at the beginning of the measurement

period.

26

49



50

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Position {continued)

Premiums and Discounis _
In the governiment-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the

straight line method.

Deferred Cutflows/Deferred Inflows of Resotitces

In addition to assets, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition fo Habilities, the District will sometimes repoirt a separate section for deferred inflows of ressurces.
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that tme.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the defined
berefit pension plans (the Plans) of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the
California Public Employees” Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the Plans
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

27



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E.

Assets, Deferred Qutflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued)

Fund Balance
Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to

observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as

follows:

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance dassification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form.
Examples include inventory, prepaid items, the long-term portion of loans receivable, and nonfinancial assets
held for resale. This classification also reflects amounts that are in spendable form but that are legally or
contractually required to remain intact, such as the principal of a permanent endowment.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-
imposed by formal action of the Governing Board. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must
be imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined subsequent to
that date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. In contrast to restricted fund balance, committed
fund balance may be redirected by the government to other purposes as long as the original constraints are
removed or modified in the same manner in which they were imposed, that is, by the same formal action of the

Governing Board.

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the government intends to be used for
specific purposes. Assignments may be established either by the Governing Board or by a designee of the
governing body, and are subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraint. In contrast to the
constraints giving rise to committed fund balance, constraints giving rise to assigned fund balance are not
required to be imposed, modified, or removed by formal action of the Governing Board. The action does not
require the same level of formality and may be delegated to another body or official. Additionally, the assignment
need not be made before the end of the reporting period, but rather may be made any time prior to the issuance

of the financial statements.

Unassigned - In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or eliminating
amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

The District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance

classifications could be used.

28

51



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2618

FaY

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E:

Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one ‘u_nd to another without a rcquzrcment for repayment

are reported as interfund transfers. Iterfund wansfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in

L

governmental funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that
initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements. Tnterfund transfers are eliminated in the
governimental activities columns of the statement of activides.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aifect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estitnates.

Budgetary Data

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The District
governing board satisfied these requirements: The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year
to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at
the time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major

object account.

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the armhounts when
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary
statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For purposes of the budget,
on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally accepted

accounting principles.

Pro Tax

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County Auditor-Controller
bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received.

29



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J.

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 75 - In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This standard’s primary objective is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment bernefits other than pensions. The
Statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The District has implemented GASB Statement

No. 75 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 84 — In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This standard’s
primary objective is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The statement is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. The District has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 85 — In March 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This standard’s primary
objective is to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain
GASB Statements. This statement addresses a variety of topics including issues related to blending component
units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other
postemployment benefits [OPEB]). The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The
District has implemented GASB Statement No. 85 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 87 - In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard’s primary objective
is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financiat
reporting for leases by governrients. The statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.
The District has not determined the impact on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 88 — In April 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt,
including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This standard’s primary objective is to improve the information
that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and
direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should iriclude when disclosing information
related to debt. The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The District has not

determined the impact on the financial statements.

30

53



Ln
'Y

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Summary of Cash and Investmentis

Tofal
Governmental _Fidudary
Activities Funds
Investment in county treasury $ 3429863 % -
Cash on hand and in banks 5,000 196307
Cash in revolving fund 10,000 =
Toial cash and invesimenis $ 3,444,863 $ 196,307

B. Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments inlocal agency bonds,
notes, or warrants within the state; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered state warrants or treasury notes;
securities of the Us. Governmefit, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit
placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management
companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; collateralized mortgage
obligations; and the County Investment Pool.

Investment in County Treasury - The District maintains substantially all of its cash in the County Treasury in
accordance with Education Code Section 41001. The Glenn County Treasurer’s pooled investments are managed

by the County Treasurer who reports on a monthly basis to the board of supervisors. In addition, the function
of the County Treasury Oversi ght Committee is to review and monitor the County’s investment policy. The
comunittee membersl-ap includes the Treasurer and Tax Collector, the Auditor-C pﬂ'oﬂar, Chief Administrative
Officer, Superintendent of Schools Representative, and a public member. The fair value of the District's
investment in the pool is based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County
Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the

amortized cost basis.

31



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 2 ~ CASH AND INVESTMENTS {(continued)

C. General Authorizations

Except for investments by trustees of debt proceeds, the authority to invest District funds deposited with the
county treasury is delegated to the County Treasurer and Tax Collector. Additional information about the
investment policy of the County Treasurer and Tax Collector may be obtained from its website. The table below
identifies the investment types permitted by California Government Code.

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Remaining Percentage of Investment in
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U. S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U. S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

D. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County
Treasury. The District maintains a pooled investment with the County Treasury with a fair value of
approximately $3,424,057 and an amortized book value of $3,429,863.

E. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.

This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The
investments in the County Treasury are not required to be rated. As of June 30, 2018, the pooled investments in

the County Treasury were not rated.

32



w
[

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 36, 2618

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS {coniinued}

és]
3

Custodial Cradit Rick — Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District
does.not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code reqm;es

that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by  pledging securities in an

undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public
agendies: California law also allows finandia! institutions & secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having 2 value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of june 30,

2018, the District's bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.
Fair Value

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accountmg principles. The fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
rvalue, The foﬂovgnqg provides a summary of the hIPra_rc_hy used to measure fair value:

mansura an ::c:ai- e ftair

1 Il 855l S X

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable,

either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the circumstances,
which might include the Districts own data. The District should adjust that data if reasonable availabie
information indicates that other market participants would use different data or certain circumstances specific
to the District are not available to other market participants.

Uncategorized - Investments in the Glenn County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input
levels above because the District's transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions
and redemptions are iransacted at $1.00 net asset value per share.

The District's fair value measurements at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Uncategorized
Investment in county treasury $ 3,424,057
Total fair market value of investments § 3,424,057

38



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Non-Major Total
_ Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Activities
Federal Government
Categorical aid 17,109 $ 54,938 $ 72,047
State Government
Categorical aid - 6,703 6,703
Lottery 29484 - 29,484
Local Government
Other local sources 139,462 5,981 145,443
Total 186,055 $ 67,622 $ 253,677
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:
Balance Balance
July 01, 2017 Additions Deletions June 30, 2018
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 293,887 $ - $ - % 293,887
Construction in progress - 439471 - 439471
Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 293,887 439,471 = 733,358
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements 604,362 - - 604,362
Buildings & improvements 9,278,697 - - 9,278,697
Furniture & equipment 1,600,215 35,564 6,409 1,629,370
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 11,483,274 35,564 6,409 11,512,429
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvements 441,706 15,837 - 457,543
Buildings & improvements 4,433,228 243,372 - 4,676,600
Furniture & equipment 1,091,696 74,430 6,409 1,159,717
Total Accumulated Depreciation 5,966,630 333,639 6,409 6,293,860
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 5,810,531 $ 141,396 $ -5 5,951,927
34

57



w

[¢4]

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Depreciation expense is allocated to governmental functions as follows:

Govermnmental Activities

—— Indtruciion. . 5 206,022
Home-to-school transportation 60,911

Food services 23,933

All other pupil services 7,033

All other general administration 10,305

Plant services 25435

Total depreciation expense $ 333,639

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
A. Interfund Receivables/Payable ue Fro ue To

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Due From Other Funds
Non-Major
Governmental
Due To Other Funds General Fund Funds Total

General Fund $ -5 7,832 § 7,820
Non-Major Governmental Funds 42,719 - 42,719
Total Due From Other Funds $ 42,719 $ 7830 $ 50,549
The General Fund owed the Non-Major Child Development Fund for expenditures related to CTE. $ 7,830

The Non-Major Adult Education Fund owed the General Fund for expenditures related to modular
classroom. 32,719
The Non-Major Child Development Fund owed the General Fund for repayment of a temporary loan. 10,000
$ 50,549

Total

B. Operating Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the Non-Major Special Reserve Fund for Capital
Outlay Projects transferring $36 to the Non-Major Deferred Maintenance Fund to close out the fund.

35



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 6 - ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities at June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds District-Wide Activities
Payroll $ 34446 $ 2,807 $ - 8 37,253
Vendors payable 532,969 6,530 - 539,499
Unmatured interest - - 8,908 8,908
Total $ 567415 $ 9,337 % 8908 $ 585,660

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT

A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following;:

Restated
Balance Balance Balance Due
July 01, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018 In One Year
Governmental Activities

General obligation bonds $ 569,800 $ - $ 72,600 $ 497,200 $ 72,100
Early retirement incentive 185,432 - 44,212 141,220 44212
Compensated absences 18,910 11,972 - 30,882 -
Total OPEB liability 1,217,672 - 70,571 1,147,101 -
Net pension liability 6,759,054 1,013,664 - 7,772,718 -
Total $ 8,750,868 $ 1,025,636 § 187,383 § 9,589,121 § 116,312

- Payments for general obligation bonds are made in the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.
- Payments for early retirement incentive are made in the General Fund.
Payments for compensated absences are typically liquidated in the General Fund and the Non-Major

Governmental Funds.

A. Bonded Debt

Bonds Bonds
Issue Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Series Date Dafe Rate Issue July 01, 2017 Additions Deductions June 30, 2018
2011 Refunding August 30,2011 August 1,2023 4.30% $ 886,200 $ 569,800 $ - $ 72,600 § 497,200
$ 569,800 §$ - % 72,600 § 497,200

Election 1998

In an election held April 14, 1998, the voters authorized the District to issue and sell $1,340,000 of principal
amount of general obligation bonds. These bonds were issued for the purpose of constructing and acquiring a
new library and classrooms for Hamilton High School.

36



[«)}

(=)

HAMILTON UNIFIZED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018 _ _ .

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued}

A

Lie

Bonded Debt {continued)
Election 1998 (continued)

There was one issuance under this election, Series 1998, which was issued on August 6, 1998 with interest rates
ranging from 3.90% to 4.70%. The original issuance consisted of $430,000 in current interest serial bonds and
$910,000 in current interest term bonds. Interest accrues from August 1, 1998 and is payable semi-annually on
February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 1999. Principal is payable annually on August
1, commencing August 1, 2000 through the final maturity date of August 1, 2023. On August 30, 2011, the District
issued Refunding Notes to redeem the outstanding bonds.

2011 Refunding Notes

On August 30, 2011, the District issued $886,200 of refunding notes. The notes were issued to redeem the
outstanding Election 1998, Series 1995 bonds. The bonds were issued as currerit interest serial bonds and carty
interest of 4.30%. The transaction resulted in an economic gain (difference between the present vatue of debt
service on the old bonds and the new notes) of $30,720. The principal balance cutstanding on June 30, 2013
amounted tc $497,200.

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity — Bonds

The bonds mature through 2024 as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 % 72,100 $ 19,829 % 91,929
2020 76,500 16,635 93,135
2021 80,800 13,253 94,053
2022 85,100 9,686 94,786
2023 89,300 5,936 95,236
2024 93,400 2,008 95,408
Total $ 497200 $ 67,347 $ 564,547
37



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

C. Early Retirement Incentives

The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California State Teachers” Retirement System
(CalSTRS) whereby 8 employees (2 in the 2010-11 fiscal year, 2 in the 2011-12 fiscal year, and 4 in the 2014-15
fiscal year) of the District elected to take early retirement in exchange for supplementary retirement benefits.

The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California Public Employees” Retirement
System (CalPERS) whereby 1 employee (in the 2014-15 fiscal year) of the District elected to take eatly retirement

in exchange for supplementary retirement benefits.

Future payments for the early retirement plans are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Payment
2019 $ 55,079
2020 42,786
2021 28,341
2022 22,475
2023 21,010
Total minimum lease payments 169,691
Less amount representing interest (28471)
Present value of minimum lease payments §$ 141,220

D. Compensated Absences

Total unpaid employee compensated absences as of June 30, 2018 amounted to $30,882. This amount is included
as part of long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

E. Other Postemployment Benefits

The District’s restated beginning total OPEB liability was $1,217,672 and decreased by $70,571 during the year
ended June 30, 2018. The ending total OPEB liability at June 30, 2018 was $1,147,101. See Note 9 for additional

information regarding the total OPEB liability.

F. NetPension Liability

The District’s beginning net pension liability was $6,759,054 and increased by $1,013,664 during the year ended
June 30, 2018. The ending net pension liability at June 30, 2018 was $7,772,718. See Note 10 for additional

information regarding the net pension liability.

38



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018 =

NOTE 8 - FUND BALANCES

Fund baiances were composed of the foliowing clements at june 30, 2013:

Non-Major Total
T o ' " "Governmenfai  Governmenial
General Fund Funds Funds
Non-spendable
Revolving cash $ 10,860 $ - 8 10,000
Stores inventory - 6,388 6,388
Total non-spendable 10,000 6,388 16,388
Restricted
Educational programs 825,070 98.367 923,437
Capital projects - 103,436 103,436
Debt service - 155,988 155,988
All others - 155,636 155,636
Total restricted 825,070 - 513,427 1,338,497
Committed
Deferred maintenance - 33,524 33,524
Total committed - 33,524 33,524
Assigned
Poslemployment benefits 207,735 - 207,735
Total assigned 207,735 = 207,735
Unassigned
Reserve for economic uncertainties 354,070 - 354,070
Remaining unassigned 1,177 962 - 1,177,962
Total unassigned 1,532,032 - 1,532,032
Total $ 2,574837 § 553,339 $ 3,128,176

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures. The District’s Minimum Fund
Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, equal to no less
than 4 percent of General Fund expenditures and other financing uses.

(@8]
\O



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9 -POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

A.

Plan Description

The Hamilton Unified School District administers a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan that provides
medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees.

Benefifs Provided

The District provides postemployment health care benefits based on the age and the years of service. District-
paid benefits are subject to a cap and paid until age 65.

Employee Group Age for Eligibility | Years for Eligibility
Certificated 55 15
Classified and Confidential Management 55 15
Classified Confidential 50 10
Superintendent 55 5
Contributions

The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Hamilton Unified School District are established and
may be amended by the Hamilton Unified School District. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the

criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.

Plan Membership
Membership of the Plan consisted of the following:
Number of
participants
Inactive employees receiving benefits 7
Inactive employees entitled to but not receiving benefits* =
Participating active employees 64
71

Total number of participants®*

*Information not provided
**As of the July 1,2017 valuation date

40 63



(o4}

1aY

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

Ly

. Total OPEB Liability

The Hamilton Unified School District's total OPEB liability of $1,147,101 was measured as of June 30, 2017 and
was-determined by an actuarial valuation as-of thatdate. ——— — - — - - : . N

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuariai
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods inctuded in the measurement unle otherwise specified:
Assumptions:

Salary increases 3.00%

Medical cost frend rate 6.00% for 2017; 5.00% for 2018 and later

Dental, vision and other cost

trend rate 4.00%

Employer cap adjustment  0.00%

Age adjustment factor 0.30%

Percent married 50.0%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or Females,
as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP- 2014 Health
Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during
the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index. The actuary assumed contributions would be
sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a pericd not to exceed thirty years.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

G. Changes in Total OPEB Liability

June 30, 2018

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost $ 57,643
Interest on total OPEB liability 35,569
Benefits payments (163,783)
Net change in total OPEB liability (70,571)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,217,672
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 1,147,101
Covered payroll $ 4,720,386

District’s total OPEB liability as a percentage of

covered payroll 24.30%

The Hamilton Unified School District has invoked Paragraph 244 of GASB Statement 75 for the transition due to
cost constraints. Consequently, in order to determine the beginning total OPEB liability, a “roll-back” technique

has been used.

H. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Hamilton Unified School District, as well as what the
District’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point
lower (2.13 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.13 percent) than the current discount rate:

Valuation
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.13%) (3.13%) 4.13%)
Total OPEB liability $ 1,226,824 § 1,147,101 $ 1,073,085

65



66

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 9 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

I.  Sensitivity of the Tofal OPER Liahilitv to Changes in fhe Heaithcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Hamilton Unified School District, as well as what the
District's total OPEB lability would be if it were calculated using a bealthcare cost frend rate that is one

percentage point lower (5.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (7.00 percent) than the current healthcare

cost trend rate:
Valuation Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(5.60%) (6.00%) (7.00%)
Total OPEB liability $ 1,050,716 $ 1,147,101 $ 1,257,581

J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the Hamilton Unified School District recognized OPEB expense of
$(184,988). At June 30, 2018, the Hamilton Unrified School District reported no deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB and deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date $ 114,417
$ 114,417

The $114,417 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year

ended June 30, 2019.

Prior periods of deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources were not restated due to the fact that prior
valuations were not rerun in accordance with Paragraph 244 of GASB Statement 75. It was determined the time
and expense necessary to rerun prior valuations and to restate prior financial statements was not justified. Tn the
future, gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability will be recognized in OPEB expense
systematically over time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or
loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB and are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The amortization period differs depending
on the source of gain or loss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized on a straight-
line basis over five years. All other amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average expected
remaining service lives of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) at the

beginning of the measurement period.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans maintained by agencies of
the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System
(CalSTRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).
The District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflow of
resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the above plans as follows:

Deferred Deferred inflows
Net pension outflows related related to
liability to pensions pensions Pension expense
STRS Pension $ 5,517,090 $ 1,714,422 $ 468,081 $ 560,983
PERS Pension 2,255,628 780,439 34,983 387,831
Total $ 7,772,718 $ 2,494,861 $ 503,064 $ 948,814

. California State Teachers” Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description’
The District contributes to the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS); a cost-sharing multiple

employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
eslablished by state statutes, as legislatively ameénded, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS issues
a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial staterments and required supplementary
information. Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7919 Folsom Blvd.,

Sacramento, CA 95826.

Benefits Provided
The CalSTRS defined benefit plan has two benefit formulas:

1.

CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for retirements
after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members who have 30
years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the age factor, known
as the career factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of final compensation.

CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be creditable
to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a minimum of five
years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final compensation for each
year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age factor for retirement after
age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

67



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018 . N . == w—

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachérs’ Retivement System (CalSTRS) (confinued)

Ceontributions

Active plan CalSTRS 2% at 68 and 2% at 62 members are required 0 contribute 10.25% and 9.205% of their salazy..
for fiscal year 2018, respectively, and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by CalSTRS Teachers’
Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2018 was 14.43% of annual payroil.

7 e R S S, Ao b Faa mlam

The conttibution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. Contributions to the plan

from the District were $480,098 for the year ended june 30, 2013.

On-Behalf Payments
The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12
education. These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $265,422 to CalSTRS.

Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension Hability that
reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District
as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net
pension liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the
net pension liability $ 5,517,090
State's proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District 3,263,891
Total $ 8,780,981

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016
and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2017. The District’s proportion of the riet pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the District’s
proportion was 0.006 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $560,983. In addition, the District
recognized pension expense and revenue of $93,809 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2018, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the

following sources:

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ - $ 146,935
Differences between expected and
actual experience 20403 96,226
Changes in assumptions 1,022,105 -
Changes in propertion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 191,816 224,920
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 480,098 -
$ 1,714,422 $ 468,081

The $480,098 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources
2019 $ 221,705 $ 185,953
2020 221,705 (28,764)
2021 221,705 50,494
2022 221,705 194,453
2023 173,751 52,452
2024 173,753 13,493
$ 1,234,324 $ 468,081

46



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018 = : L

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS {continued}

Califormnia Statc Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) {continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension Hability was determined by applying update procedures t6 ari actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2016, and rolling forward the total pension liability to Jure 36, 2017 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%
Investinent Rate of Return® 7.10%
3.50%

Wage Inflation

* Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom
tables are based on MP-2016 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2010-June 30, 20615.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return {expected returns, net of pension
plan Investment expense and inflaHon) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting
Alliance-PCA) as an input to the process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by
the hoard in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each future valuation,
CalSTRS consulting actuary (Millimau) reviews the relurn assumption for reasonableness based on the most
current capital market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometrically-linked real rates of return and the
assumed assét allocation for each major asset class for the year ended June 30, 2017, dre summarized in the

oTTg

following table:

Assumed Long-Term
Asset Class Asset Expected Real

Allocation Rate of Return®
Global Equity 47% 6.30%
Fixed Income 12% 0.30%
Real Estate 13% 5.20%
Private Equity 13% 9.30%
Absolute Return/Risk Mitigating Strategies 9% 2.90%
Inflation Sensitive 4% 3.80%
Cash/Liquidity 2% -1.00%

100%

*20-year geometric average

47



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used

to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment
earnings were calculated using the long-term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming
that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions,
the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of

projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher

(8.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.10%) (7.10%) (8.10%)

District's proportionate share of

the net pension liability $ 8,100,840 $ 5,517,090 $ 3,420,202

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS

financial report.

48



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018 ) i e et _ e

NOTE 10 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CaiPERS)

Plan Description

— The District contributes to the Schoot Employer Eool undér the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retitement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-iving
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and benefidaries. Benefit provisions are established by state

cciioe o coTstanta

R PPN

statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Fublic Employees’ Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate
comprehensive amnual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office,
400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95811.

Benefits Provided
The benefits for the defined benefit plan are based on members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and

benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or berieficiaries.
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.

Contributions
Active plan members who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013, are required to contribute 7.0% of their

salary. The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) specifies that new members entering into
the plan on or after January 1, 2013, shall pay the higher of fifty percent of normal costs or 6.5% of their salary.
Additionally, for new members entering the plan on or after January 1, 2013, the employer is prohibited from
paying any of the employee contribution to CalPERS unless the employer payment of the member’s contribution
is specified in an employment agreement or collective bargaining agreement that expires after January 1, 2013.

The District is required to contribute an actuariaily determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions
used for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer
contribution rate for fiscal year 2018 was 15.531% of annual payroll. Contributions to the plan from the District
were $216,394 for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $2,255,628 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2016 and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2017. The District’s proportion of the net
pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30,
2017, the District’s proportion was 0.009 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June

30, 2016.

M
\O



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to Pensions (continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized pension expense of $387,831. At June 30, 2018, the

District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the

following sources:

Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ 78,029 $ -

Differences between expected and

actual experience 80,810 -
Changes in assumptions 329470 26,557
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 75,736 8,426
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 216,394 -
$ 780439 $ 34,983

The $216,394 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources
2019 $ 190,300 $ 31,265
2020 242,246 3,718
2021 174,229 -
2022 (42,730) -
$ 564,045 $ 34,983

50



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018 ] . R . e

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees’ Refirement Svstem (CalPERS) (confinued)

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension Hability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of june ..
30, 2016, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2017 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Infiation 2.75%
Discount Rate 7.15%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

CalPERS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom
tables are derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds. The table includes 20 years of mortality

improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
meéthod in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term
expected rate of return, both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected
pension fund cash flows were taken into account. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members
and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using

historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
short-term {first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building block approach. Using the expected
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund.
The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The

expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to
account for assumed administrative expenses.



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 — PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (continued)
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated

using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These
geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10* Years 11+**
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
Inflation Assets 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%

100.0%

*An expected inflation of 2.50% used for this period.
**An expected inflation of 3.00% used for this period.

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection of the expected

benefit payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. The test revealed the
assets would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Schools Pool.
The results of the crossover testing for the Schools Pool are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained

at CalPERS’ website.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-percentage-
point higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 3,318,752 $ 2,255,628 $ 1,373,678

52



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 10 —- PENSION PLANS (continued)
B. California Pubiic Emplovees” Retirement System (CaiPERS) (confinued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

-~ Detailed information about the pension plar’s fiduciary net position is availablein the separately issued CalPERS

financiz] Feport.

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliaryce with terms and conditions specified in
the grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such
audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial pesition

of the District at June 30, 2018.

B. Litigation

The District is involved in various litigation arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of
management and legal counsel, the disposition of all other litigation pending is not expected to have a material

adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 2018.

NOTE 12 - PARTICIPATION IN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES

The District is a member of two joint powers authorities (JPAs). The first is the California’s Valued Trust to provide
health and welfare benefits, and the other is the Golden State Risk Management Authority to provide property and
liability insurance and workers” compensation insurance. The relationship is such that the JPAs are not component

units of the District for financial reporting purposes.

i
W



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 13 - DEFERRED OU'I'FLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

A.

Pension Plans

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the District recognized
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions in the
District-wide financial statements. Further information regarding the deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources can be found at Note 10. At June 30, 2018, total deferred outflows related to
pensions was $2,494,861 and total deferred inflows related to pensions was $503,064.

Other Postemployment Benefits

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, the District recognized deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits and
deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits in the District-wide financial statements.
Further information regarding the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources can be found
at Note 9. At June 30, 2018, total deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits was $114,417.

NOTE 14 - RESTATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The beginning net position of Governmental Activities has been restated in order to record the District’s total OPEB
liability in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits

Other Than Pensions. The effect on beginning net position is presented as follows:

Governmental
Activities
3,100,803
(978,552)
$ 2,122,251

Net Position - Beginning, as Previously Reported $
Restatement
Net Position - Beginning, as Restated

54

77



78

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Budgeted Amounts Actual* Variances -
Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  Finalto Actual
REVENUES
LCFF sources $ 7,067,046 $ 7,185,902 § 7117478 % (68,424)
Federal sources 358,913 269,967 275,214 5,247
Other state sources 787,132 681,660 494,755 (186,905)
Other local sources 29,500 29,500 104,217 74,717
Total Revenues 8,242,591 8,167,029 7,991,664 (175,365)
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 3,541,054 3,478,295 3,417,974 60,321
Classified salaries 1,004,103 1,019,877 1,108,197 {88,320)
Employee benefits 1,761,703 1,738,796 1,738,294 502
Books and supplies 412,016 570,669 453,724 116,945
Services and other operating expenditures 888,247 1,023,959 909,672 114,287
Capital outlay 310,300 351,530 394,500 (42,970)
Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs 418,978 565,616 641,497 (75,881)
Total Expenditures 8,336,401 8,748,742 8,663,858 84,884
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (93,810) (581,713) (672,194) (90481)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out (103,000) (103,000) (50,000) 53,000
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (103,000) (103,000) (50,000) 53,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (196,810) (684,713) (722,194) (37,481)
Fund Balance - Beginning 2,669,277 2,669,277 2,669,277 -
Fund Balance - Ending $ 2472467 $ 1,984,564 $ 1,947,083 § (37,481)

* The actual amounts reported on this schedule do not agree with the amounts reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the following reasons:

e On-behalf payments of $265,422 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures reported in this
schedule.

e Actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts
on that schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay
Projects and the Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund type
definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

55 79



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

June 30, 2018
Total OPEE Liability
Service Cost $ 57,643
Interest on total OPEB liability 35,569
Benefits payments ) ) {163,783}
Net change in total OPEB liability - (70,571)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,217,672
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 1,147,101
Covered payroll $ 4,720,386
District’s total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered payroll 24.30%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

80 56



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

- CALSTRS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30,2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30,2015

District’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.006% 0.006% 0.006% 0.006%
District’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability $ 5517,090 § 4929244 § 4289136 $ 3454,068
State's proportionate share of the net pension

Liability associated with the District 3,263,891 2,806,545 2,268,474 2,085,715

Total $ 8780,981 $ 7,735789 % 6557610 § 5,539,783

District's covered payroll $ 3,193,611 $ 3,041,124 $ 2952115 § 2,632,667
District’s proportionate share of the net

pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 172.8% 162.1% 1453% 1312%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 69.5% 70.0% 74.0% 765%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

57

81



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
- CALPERS

FOR TIE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 Jane 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

District’s proportion of the nét pension liability 0.009% 0.009% 0.009% 0.009%
District's proportionate share of the net
© pension iability T TE T 2755628 T F 1829810 s 1380963 2§ 0 Losaser
District's covered payroll $ 1,207,955 $ 1,113,685 $ 1,030,826 $ 984,697
District's proportionate share of the net

pension liability ds a percentage

ofits covered payroll 186.7% 1643% 1340% 108.1%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

pexcentage of the total pension liability 71.9% 73.3% 794% 854%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the year-end that occurred one year prior.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

82 58



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALSTRS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Contractually required contribution $ 480,098 $ 400,723 $ 327,759 $ 262,013
Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution® (480,098) (400,723) (327,759) (262,013)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ #
District’s covered payroll 5 3,327,082 $ 3,193,611 $ 3,041,124 $ 2,952,115
Contributions as a percentage of
14.43% 12.55% 10.78% 8.88%

covered payroll

*Amounts do not include on-behalf contributions

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

59

83



84

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS - CALPERS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 TJune 30, 2014 June 30, 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 216,394 & - 167,570 $ 131477 $ 121,898
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required centribution _ (216,394) A67,570) (131,477)  {121,898)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - $ - $ - $ -
Bistrict’s-.covered payroll $ 1,393,304 $ 1,207,955 $ 1,113,685 & 1,030,826
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 15.53% 13.87% 11.81% 11.83%

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.
60



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the General

Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The budgetary comparison
schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period as well as (c)
actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis. A separate column to report the
variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required.

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 75 for all sole and agent employers that provide other

postemployment benefits (OPEB). Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years
under which GASB Statement No. 75 was applicable. The schedule presents the sources of change in the total OPEB
liability, and the components of the total OPEB liability and related ratios, including the total OPEB liability as a

percentage of covered-employee payroll.

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The
schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s covered payroll, the District’s
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer’s covered payroll,
and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability.

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for CalSTRS and CalPERS.

Changes in Assumptions
The CalSTRS plan rate of investment return assumption was changed from 7.60 percent to 7.10 percent since the

previous valuation. The CalPERS plan rate of investment return assumption was changed from 7.65 percent to 7.15

percent since the previous valuation.

61

85



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES {(continued)

Schedule of District Contributions
This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The

schediile peesents the District’s statutorily—or-coniractually required employer contribution, the amount of

contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutofily of contrdctually required employer
contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and the amount
of contributions recognized by the pension pian in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer
contribution, the District’s covered payroil, and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension pian in
relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of the District’s covered

payroil.

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District incurred an excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual
major funds presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule by major object code, as follows:

Expenditures and Other Uses
Budget Actual Excess

General Fund
Classified salaries % 1,019,877 $ 1,108,197 $ 88,320
Capital cullay $ 351,530 §% 394,500 §$ 42,970

Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs $ 565,616 $ 641,497 $ 75,881

62



SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION

87



88

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SCHOOL DISTRICT
TK/K through Third
Regular ADA
Fourth through Sixth
Regular ADA
Seventh through Eighth
Regular ADA
Ninth threugh Twelfth
Regular ADA
TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

63

Second
" Period Annuoal
Repaort Report
<9B4E3860> <A31DFE3D>
17277 17424
139.62 141 58
79.02 79.64
280.80 282.07
67221 67753




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2017-18
Minutes Actual Number

Grade Level Requirement Minutes of Days Status
Kindergarten 36,000 58,900 180 Complied
Grade1 50,400 52,100 180 Complied
Grade 2 50,400 52,300 180 Complied
Grade3 50,400 52,300 180 Complied
Grade4 54,000 57,300 180 Complied
Grade5 54,000 57,300 180 Complied
Grade6 54,000 61,368 180 Complied
Grade7 54,000 61,368 180 Complied
Grade 8 54,000 61,368 180 Complied
Grade9 64,300 65,640 180 Complied
Grade 10 64,800 65,640 180 Complied
Gradel1 64,800 65,640 180 Complied
Grade 12 64,800 65,640 180 Complied

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

64

89



90

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

20619 (Budget) 2018 2017 2016

General Fund - Budgetary Basis™

Revenues And Qther Financing Sources $ 8,338,953 % 7,991,664 & 7982174 % §A411,378

Expenditures And Other Financing Uses 8,542,143 8,713,858 8,052,990 7,844,043
Net change in Fund Balance $ {203,190) $% (722,194) § (70,816) $ 567,335
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,743,893 $ 1,947,083 & 2,669,277 $ 2,740,093
Available Reserves* $ 1,382,042 § 1,532,022 $ 2231952 $ 2,449 535
Available Reserves As A

Percentage Of Outgo 1626% 17.58% 27.72% 3123%
Long-term Debt $ 9472,809 $ 9,589,121 §$ 7,772,316 § 6,825,197
Average Daily

Attendance At P-2 663 672 669 712

The General Fund balance has decreased by $793,010 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2018-19 budget projects
a decrease of $203,190. For a District this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 4% of General Fund

expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating deficits in two of the past three years and anticipates incurring an operating
deficit during the 2018-19 fiscal year. Total long-term obligations have increased by $2,763,924 over the past two
years.

Average daily attendance has decreased by 40 ADA over the past two years. A decrease of 9 ADA is anticipated
during the 2018-19 fiscal year.

*Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balance within the General Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for
Other Than Capital Outlay Projects.

*The actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts on that
schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects and Special
Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund type definitions promulgated by GASB
Statement No. 54. On-behalf payments of $265,422 are notincluded in the actual revenues and expenditures reported

in this schedule.

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

65



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Special Reserve  Special Reserve

Fund for Other Fund for
General Than Capital  Postemployment
Fund Qutlay Projects Benefits
June 30, 2018, annual financial and budget report fund balance $ 1,947,083 $ 420,019 $ 207,735
Adjustments and reclassifications:
Increase (decrease) in total fund balances:
Fund balance transfer (GASB 54) 627,754 (420,019) (207,735)
Net adjustments and reclassifications 627,754 (420,019) (207,735)
June 30, 2018, audited financial statement fund balance $ 2,574,837 % - -

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

66

91



‘uoneuniojut Arejuswaiddns oy ajou Surdueduiosde aag

S6E'CU9 5 mmm,.mm..— § - $ 9EP'E0T $§ TICEE & WMNN‘mw__ § B08ZL § 9IEPET 8 Jduejeq pung pur sauLiqer] (w10,
GESENS ggega] - 9E7'E01 $I5°eE Fe0eor 68T SL6'S6 saourieg pungrelo,
7eL'es = - = $2G'CE L - - poRTITWoD)
Le¥'es 886'51 ] 9EPE0L & 9£9'651 26ET 546'S6 PaIIISY
98E'9 . - - - BBE'9 - F s1qepuads-uoN
SEHONVIVA dNNA
980'es 1 = - = I66T'E 91£'01L 1%€'8¢€ SSUIIqeI] [?10.L,
614G - = ] - = 000°0L 61LCE SpuTy 18430 0} ang
886 § = § - $ - $ - 661’ $ 916 $ TZ9's $ $anIEqel] PanIddy
SHILIUAVIT
G6E'S09 § 836591 5 - $ 9E7E0T $ PI'EE lecz's91 $ 806'CT $ 91€Pel $ 91995V [210,
§8E9 = = = = lgge’y & - K101u3 A1 831015
0€8% . - & = - 08’2 = Spuny 1830 woy ang
2L 2495 = 008 81 ?wc‘mﬁ SEL'E 264'SH S[qeARIAI 5]UN0dY
695'ezs b 1ZIIs1 $ - $ 9e6‘col $ ove'ee § 1eL'swl § epul $ %288 $ SJuUdWIs3AUL pUe Yse)
SIASSV
spimg punguopdwapsy  $199[01g ATANO pung pung pun] epeze) pumyg pung
[esuuIdsey gy sasspuf puog  epdeDaoy pung  sepmpegrende)  souruwspEl womdopasg  uoyesnpyg upy
Tolep-uoN sar283y [epadg pauagad PIMD
8102 ‘0¢ ANNI

LAHHS HONVIVE DNINIIINOD
LOTILSIA TOOHDS AIIIINN NOLTINVH

92



89

"uoneurtojur Lreyuswisrddns o} ajou Surfuedwodoe sag

6EE'E6S $ 886'GST $ - 9EF'E0T $ Pegee $ $20'291 $ T6ET % SL6'S6 $
8TL'109 L1P9L1 9¢ 9.E°46 2E6'L G68'ECe 9Tt 018'c6

(685'87) (627'02) (9¢) 0909 265'GC (1£8'19) (i3 6912

- - {9g) = 9¢ - : =

(9¢) - (9g) - - - * =

9¢ - - > 9¢ é - -

(68€'87) (62%'02) - 0909 995'5T (1£8'19) DET S91'T

6PT'LEOT 0%5'56 - = 0944 006'E%S T9F621 80507

0%6'cC 0%6'ce = . - - - E

009'¢L 0092 = " " * = -

8l - - - - - = 811’6

0%6'89 - - < 094’42 2 - 00Z'1%

006'€PS - ¢ < - 006c¥S = -

1€1°08 - . - . - " 1€1°08

0Zs'65¢ . - - - - 199621 650011

092/386 TT1'SZ - 0909 967'6S 620'28% 165°6TT EL9'EVT

PI89TT 8€9'GL = 0909 96¢ ST6'1E 6T 2947

EFH1SE (£29) - % s £8787 295621 STTH6T

€0S"49% - - < . 1281y - 789'sy

000°eg - $ - - $ 000'es $ - $ - - $

spunyg pung wondwapay  spalorg Lepng pung puny puny eisjaye) pung punyg
[euawuIaA 0D Riseruppuog  rerde) oy puny  sepmpeg 1ende) durudUTey juawrdofasag uoyempy ynpy
rofep-uoN aAT989Y Teadg pausja YD

Surpuy - ssurpeg pung

SunnnSag - aouejeq pung
HONVIVE ANNI NI AONVHD 1IN
(s95]) S321n0g Suueur JON

MO SIBjSULL],
u1 §I9jSURI],

(s98n) sa0Inog Sunueurg 12410

saryipuadxg 1940

SanNuAAIY J0 (AIuBdIFa(]) S599XY
saxipuadxy w0y,
13410 pue 1sa1aju]

[edurig
2014135 }3Q

dourUBjUI pue UopIsinboe sapI[Ry

SIDTAIDS JUE[F
§93[A198 POOg
sao1A9s fidng

UOTIRI)SIUIUIPE 3315 [001I5
5301AJ9S PR]B[31-UOTJINIISU]

uotINISUY
RNy

STANLIANIIXT
SINUIANY JeI0L

$93IN0S [Ed0] I3YI0
§32aN08 83¥38 IYI0
§30IN0S [eI3pa]
$92IN0S 1907

SANNAATY

SHONVTIVE ANNA NI SEONVHD ANV ‘STINLIANAIXHE ‘san

LONILSIA TOOHDS AAIIINN NOLT

810 ‘0¢ INN[ AIANH AVIA THL YO4
NHAHT 40 INHWHLV.LS ONINIGINOD

H

93



94

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
JUNE 30,2018 —  — e ——— - - —

The Hamilton Unified School District was established on July 1, 2009 upon the unification of Hamilton High School
District and Hamilton Elementary School District. The boundaries of the former districts changed in accordance with
the approved plan of unification. The District is located in Glenn County and is currently operating one high school,
one elementary school, two community day schools, one continuation high school, one preschool, and an adult
education program.

GOVERNING BOARD
Member Office Term Expires
Gabriel Leal President . December 2020
Hubert “Wendall” Lower Clerk - December 2020
Rod Boone Member December 2020
Tomas Loera Member December 2018
Rosalinda Sanchez Meirber December 2018

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATORS

Charles Tracy
Superintendent

Diane Holliman
Chief Business Official

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

69



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA)
Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The

purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state
funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at

various grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time
This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the

District complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46208. During the year ended June 30,
2018, the District participated in the Longer Day incentive funding program. As of June 30, 2018, the District had not

yet met its target funding.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years’ data along with current year budget
information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District’s ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of time.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements

~ This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the Annual
Financial and Budget Report Unaudited Actuals to the audited financial statements.

Combining Statements — Non-Major Funds

These statements provide information on the District’s non-major funds.

Local Education Agency Organization Structure

This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the governing

board, and members of the administration.

70

95



96

OTHER INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS’” REPORTS




Christy Whiite, CPA

Michaer D, Ash, CPA

johan Whitehouse, CPA

Heather Daud Rubio

christwahlt 0

A PRAOFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors” Report

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Hamilton Unified School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Hamilton
Unified School District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

December 10, 2018.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hamilton
Unified School District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School

District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

71 97



<]
10

i, Wt Fonsiste

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
wag not designed to identify all deficiendies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these imitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we

L Lt

consider tc be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hamilton Unified School District's ﬁnanc:al statements are
free from material ausstatement, W‘e‘pe‘rfor—te tests of its comiplianice with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express guch an opinion. The regitlts of qur ests

Vi VUl alftain, Gl alluitaal

disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing

Standards.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control er on
compliance. This report is an mtegral part of an audlt performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any °
other purpose.

San Diegu, California
December 10, 2018



Christy Whiite, CPA
wichael D, Ash, (P4
Jokin Whttenouse, CPA

Hegther Daud Rubig

SAN DIEGO
LCS ANGELES

SAN FRANC O/BAY AREA

Corpovate

248 Oi

San eg

toll-free: 8

Christwahlt 5

A PROFESSIONAL
ACCOUNTANCY CORPORATION

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditors” Report

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Hamilton Unified School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 2017-2018 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations,
section 19810, that could have a direct and material effect on each of Hamilton Unified School
District’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, as identified below.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hamilton Unified School
District's state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the 2017-2018 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below occurred. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hamilton Unified School District's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the
requirements referred to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination
of Hamilton Unified School District's compliance with those requirements.

73 99



100

Opinion on State Compliance

In our opinion, Hamilton Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state programs noted in the table below for the year ended

Jume 30, 2018.

Procedures Performed

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested fransactions and records to determine
Hamilton Unified School District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the folowing items:

CaIifornia Clean Energy Jobs Act

{Continued on the next page)

74

PROCEDURES
PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study Not Applicable
Continuation Edueation No, seebelow
Ingtructienal Time Yes B
Instructional Materials Yes
- Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Not Applicable
Gann Limit Calculation Yes = g
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools Not Applicable
Middle or Early College High Schools Not Applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes '
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not Applicablg
Educator Fffectiveness Yes
Yes



Proacedures Performed (continued)

PROCEDURES

PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not Applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes
Independent Study-Course Based Not Applicable
Attendance; for charter schools Not Applicable
Mode of Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable
Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study;

for charter schools Not Applicable
Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based

Instruction; for charter schools Not Applicable
Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based; for

charter schools Not Applicable
Charter School Facility Grant Program Not Applicable

We did not perform testing for Continuation Education because it was not material for the year ended June 30, 2018.

San Diego, California
December 10, 2018

75 101



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS

102



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors’ report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

Significant deficiency (ies) identified?

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AWARDS

The District was not subject to Uniform Guidance Single Audit for the year ended
June 30, 2018 because federal award expenditures did not exceed $750,000.

STATE AWARDS
Internal control over state programs:
Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiency (ies) identified?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for state programs:

76

Unmodified

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified

103



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30000 Internal Control

There wereno financial statement findings for the year ended June 36, 2018.

104 77



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FIVE DIGIT CODE

10000
40000
42000
60000
61000
62000
70000
71000
72000

AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
Attendance
State Compliance
Charter School Facilities Programs
Miscellaneous
Classroom Teacher Salaries
Local Control Accountability Plan
Instructional Materials

Teacher Misassignments

School Accountability Report Card

There were no state award findings or questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

78

105



‘pajuswsidury :smyerg Juaxmyy
|
SOV 3y 0} Sunsod usym £demdde sInsus Pue SULI0] 111 S JO MITASI YSNOIOL]) SI0W € Op [[1M ISI Y} ‘a1rung ay3 U] :asuodsay Pmsiq

8114 paredaad Agusoar 1sew ay) ui papnpur uoneusrogur apduios Arareanboe 03 sseooad e Juswerdut JmsI S\ yey) PUSUIUIOaI SAL IWOTEPUI WU Y]

.Efaum 10U 313M SIS 9YT, 110953

s[qedtidde joNN 81500 paucysang)

"DAVS 9y Sunsod ur s1on1e (o) :9sNE))
"OdVS 34 U0, po0oD),, NG W0 I14 813 U0 ,ITeq,, Se PIIOU Sem 10TIN] [00YdS YBIL] UoTuIe] 1y

"DYVS 343 U0, pooD),, N W04 T4 3Y} U0 ,Ife ], Se PAOU SeM IO ‘[00ydg ATejusualg UolIurer] 1v
, |

'suonpuod senwe; Jurpredor pajou sxam sensst JULMOf[OF e\ /£T-9T0Z Ul muwymom SOWMVS 91-G1.07 Jo ofdures aAnejussaidas e jo Sunss) Suun( uonpuon)

_ "(P)z00L1 pue (8)(q)9z1EE suondag spor

uoneanpg zad se LLILID SUIes 3y} JOSUI JEL) SJUSWINIISUI uonerijeAs 1200 10 ‘preog UOHEd0[Y 338§ ) £q pasoidde pue UOHONIISUOY) [0OLPS TN JO 3DYFO

3yl 4q padopasp urioj (114) 001 uondadsur Ape; paredard Apusoal 3s0uW BU} UT PajedIpul s ‘SUOHIPU0d SIT[IDE] [00YIS Burpae3ai uorEULIONUT UTEIU0)

pmoys Arenigag up pajsod pue 1PLISI] B3 UTYIIM S} [00UDS yoea 103 sseq fenuue uo paredeid (sDYVS) spaed 1oday Ariqeunoddy [ooydg HAREY kg

00022 SAAVI LAOJDA ALIMIEVINNODDV TO0OHDS — 100-21027 DNIGNTT

8T0T ‘0¢ ANNI AIANT IVIA TH.L MO4
SONIANIA LIANV YOI 40 FT1NATHDS AUVININNS
LONILSIA TOOHJS AAIfINA NOLTIAVH



08

, ‘uoneudisap NDIA 11943 1oddns 03 uoneyusumdop Sunzoddns
smoam%fog%Esoum&&EE:%EDﬂuEmEmﬁﬁumﬁ&amE%EmAmﬁ-ﬂoﬁswmmcﬁE-msﬁoﬁs.D-Soﬁotwm;m\:omeaEcu

‘WYSISIDA0 [2O13]D) :asne))
'sjuswainbaz ayeig yym sduerduiod ut jou st PIUSI SYT, 103539

'SJUSPIYS SIqI3TAUL § JO [10} B 10] PAUIqUIO)) “SGISI[SUI Se PSYIUSPT o1om
stuepnis ¢ ‘vonemdod pajoeduar sy3 1040 payejoderixs s1 10118 Ay usyM ‘uoneusisep aay; Moddns 03 uoneyuswmoop Suntoddns sadoxd aAey Jou pIp 4
Se payIsse sem oym Jioday IS JUSPIIS — YINOA 12150,1/10uxes] YsHSUH /NI ST'T SAVATVD U} WoIj pa)sa) SJUSprs € Jo T ‘A[feuonippy siqi3iaur se
PRSI 319M spuapmys ¢ ‘uonteindod paoedurr a3 1240 pajejoderixs st 10a1s sy usyp ‘uoneusisep 1oy oddns.o} uoneiuswmoop Sunioddns radoxd aney
10U PIP INAY A S8 PayIsse[d sem oym }10day] 18T Juepnig — YInox 12180 4/10utea] YsIBuF/INGIA 81'T SAVITVD SUi WoIj pajsa) SJUSPNIS 8% JO [ UORIPU0))

"Sunoday] sounnduior) ajg pu saousSy uonvInpg
~910Z 34} 30 M uondag ur (9)(g)(9)z0'8czzd uonsag apoy) uoneoNpy yim svuerdwod £31asa 03 parmbai axe sioypny
THS 31} Sejedtput yeys uoneuswnoop Sunioddns saey jsnw 310day 11T JUSPNIG — Yo A 19180 /19u1ea ] st Sug /INDN A
118ug 10 (paynaed Aposaip jou are oym) (Nd¥d) 219181 [eswr soud peonpaz 10 391y se PaLIsSe]d SjuSpIg (eI

19207 Z1-Y Jo sypny pnuuy iof apins) /T
"UOHRUIULI3}aP 3y} 10} J[qI31]a Sem Juap
81’ SAVATVD 8y} uo () Ioutes| ys

(0000%) INNOD TIdNd QALVOI Id[1CNI] — Z00-LT0ZF ONIANIA

810 ‘0¢ ANN[ AFIANH UVHA THL MOd
panupuod ‘SHNIANII LIANY YOINd 10 T1NATHDS AIVININNS

P

LOTHLSIA TOOHDS @AIJINA NOIT' Y

107



"uoneudisap sqV I1vD 119Y) 1oddns o3 uoneyusumoop sadoxd aaey woday 1517 Juepmg —
UINOY, I81SO/13Wwiea] YSTBUGANIY 8T'T SAVITVD 843 ul T3 10 NI Se PRJSI] SIISPIYS [[2 ¥} INSUR IDTSI(] Y} 1L} PUSWIUIONST S| WOHEPUSUIW0D9Y]

Juausnipe ypne Junog jidn pajeolidnpun Jo 1503 paEunsa| 0z
-d 10 s2 ajey Bujpling deg spumalels

01 4

._—... il - Leor M il = 3: ........ o) .,._ \ .|..”._A.... Lils = — .|||I.
636'018) Juawjsnipe Jipne ojjeijusouc) pue ejuawsiddng jebie) L] gy |

£96'0085 buipuy ypne o} Bupun{ JURIE) UOIBINIROUDY JeBIE] Pashay| G
099'L18% | 2-d Jo Se pajeynojed BujpLnd juein ualjeljuasuo) BheL
A i . ¥ i = e,
b8 | uswisnipe yipne Buipun.j JueiD [eluswaKiang jehie]
1/6'986$ Buipuy ypne Joj Buipun Ju=is) Ejuswsiddng 1eBiel pashay| g}
862’1968 | €-d 10 se paje|nolen Buipun IS [Bluswaddng 1beL| |1
L08'88 | £ov's$ | eBL'.S | 028'u8 ' vay sad ueis) sseg pajsnlpy| o
6926 | 028 | 95'9cl | 6988} VY WIS Uoleiluacuo) pue [eswsiddns| 6
8928°0 ! ] g2 Uojj21|asuo) 10} paisnipe ddn peshey| of
de uoijerusouog ouisiq 100ydS avEUIULR}ag tATUD S00YIS Jaeys| 6
89280 I Buipuy ypne 1o} ddn paspey| g
508870 : 2-d 10 se palenolen ddn| £
082"} Juno) jidnd pajealydnpun) paisnipy pasnay| o
591'Z jusuifjolud paisnipy pasnay| ¢
(@ | Juno) jidnd pajealidnpu Jo JequinN - Juswisnipy pny| ¥
JUBLUIOIUZ JO JSQUINN - JuBWISNIPY Jipny| €
86L'1 2l 10 SB 119148 dd 8y} woy junod |idnd paieaijdnpun pRisnipy gL ¢
sa1'2 ] £-d J0 SB QIUX3 ddf} 84} Wol JuawijjeluT pajsnipy [B1oL| |

il ~ juBugs|
'SMOT[O] Se Pajend[ed ‘SOp'es S1S00) pauonsang)

| (PeMuma0)) (0000%) LNNOD TdNd O VOI'IdNANI — T00-4102# DNIANIJ

8107 “0¢ ANNI AIANT ¥VAA THL Y04
panuguod ‘SHNIANIA LIANY YOI¥d 10 FINAIHDS AMVININNS
IOTULSIA TOOHDS AATIINA NOLTIANVH

108



[4:]

"‘paruswerdu] :snyeig Juazmy)

'Teaozdde pauSis ayy Bunteme s a1e 9p) 'STOOYIS JO FuspUSULIAANG AUNOD) SYF M I9ATEM © Pafl) Sy PMISI(] OY} ‘SUIUesur ) uf 'sesuadxa
[0} 03 S3LILTES 19103} WLOOISSE]D JO JUSWSIMNDAI WINWITUTW %GG 3y} 393t 03 ueld sy ssjensuowap 128png 81-/410z Podopy s omsi] 3y, :osuodsayy PWISI]

"JusWaINbax WNUTUIUE 9,68 U3 199wt A3Y} Jey} 91ns 3q 03
sasuadxa [e30} 113y} JsuTede S19YILs) WOOISSE]) JO SAMIB[ES SPIRMO) SasuadXa 1191} 10}UOW JOTHSI(] 94} ‘aning oiy) Ul JeU} PUSUIWIOD3I 9A) :SUOIEPUIWIULOIY]

'£66'8€1$ 30 Lousorzap a1 a1e s3s00 pauopsonb sy, 181807 paucnsang

"TeaA [0Sy £T-9T0T S} Ul SILIL[Es 19UJes} W00ISSed
U0 96676 uads A[uo 101sIq SYL PMISTP [00UDS PIYIUN e 10§ %G ST eTuIofie]) Jo 9yel§ oy Aq paambai aSejusorad urmumumu SYJ, xAu0)/aa1)ads1ag

"SpuRUIaIMbax WINUITUTW S} 199Ul 10U PIP PMISIC Y3 SIND 3103pnq Jusdai o} ang asne))

"£66'8E1$ 70 ADUSDLAP © 03 N0 SJR[MI[EDd YDIYM %G0'Z AQ %6G JO Sejusorad parmbai wnuiupu A} MOfeq SeM PIISI YT, "96%°065'CE Sem
SISYIE3} WOOISSe 103 §}1yaUaq pue saLIe[es [e10} 33 Pue /F€'08.4°9% sem A10T ‘0¢ dun| pajpne 1eak 9y} 107 Uoneanps jo asuadxa JUSTIND § JOMISI( YT, 199534

Juawiaimbai a8ejusdiad wmurmurur ) 193U 30U PIp PIUSI Y3 “reak (89S £1-910Z Yl Uf [uonIpuo)

'SI91]ea) W00ISSe[ JO SalIe[es SpIeMO) UOTHeINpa Jo
sesuadxa JuBLIND S JOMISIC BY} JO %GG JO WINUITUTUI & puadxa PINOYS PIISTP [COYDS PIPIUN € ‘TLETH UOBISS 9POD) UOTedNPH BILLIOJI[ED) UT Y3107 138 SV LRI

(00019) SHRIVTVS YHHO VAL WOOUSSV 10D - £00-210¢¢ HDNIGNIA

‘poyusweidwy snyeyg Jusnmy)

‘Tl3Mm s Adeindde 10 SULI0F paonpai/eal) ay) SuLio}ruow A1esop st j3esg "teak [0ouRs §1/4107 au3 10§ paimba se 1roda 911 SAVATVD 3Y3 Ut papaodai s
uoneysumd0p tadoxd sy aamsus 0} sauaY pue SPHIINN usamiaq speofdn auy; Suptojuout Ajesop ST PIISIP Y, ‘§1'T 105 SAVATIVD 0 UOISSTUIQNS 3Y) 193j8
PI291I00 pue paisA0dstp sem wisjqoad 3y, "yinoA 19)s0y/ssafpwroy pue ‘s, 7y “wrerBord {oumy paonpai pue 831y ay3 ut sadueyd SJULPIS JO UOHRIYMDA JOMISTP
ay3 Surpeordn jou sem spr{InN 18y sem "P3I3A0ISIP SeM JRU] SNSST BIBMIJOS YL 'SAV LTV Ul UOHEIISD 0} 1011d PRISACDSIPUL JUSM oY} SNISS] JILM]JOS
€ PeY ‘SPDIUNN “I0PUsA IOISIP 3 Jey) pauies] sem 3t 4aodox 811 SAVJTIVD 34 JO UonedYIRd 1a3je ‘1eak [0oyds £1/910z aus Sunn :asuodsay PUISIg

{PSRURW03) (0000%) LNN0D TIdd ALV TdNAN = Z00-Z102F ONIGNII

8102 ‘o€ ANN[ AIANT UVHIA THL YOI
panuguod ‘SONTANIA LIANV YOTUd 40 T1INATHDS AMNVININQS

LOTMISIA TOOHDS AALIINN NOLT 1

109



Office of the Superintendent

311 8. Villa Avenue, Willows CA 93988 (330} 934-6375 + FAXN {530) 934-6611
www.zlenncoe.ors » fraceyguarne@glennicoe.org

Tracey 4. Quarne, Superintendent

GLENN COUNTY

OFFICE of EDUCATION

To:  District Superintendents,

It’s time to begin the process of selecting educators from your district for the Glenn County’s Educators’
Hall of Fame. Please see the attached list of those individuals who have been selected in the past.
Each district is responsible for purchasing individual recipient plaques. Glenn County Office of

Education wili purchase the plaque that includes ail 2019 recipients to be displayed in the Chrome
School on the Fairgrounds.

DEADLINE April 12 - notify Imelda Diaz at Glenn County Office of Education who your
recipient is.

—CRITERIA Criteria for selection will be left entirely up to-each-district’s Board of Trustees.
Recipients may represent any area of education i.e. teacher, trustee,
administration, secretary, custodian, etc.

SEND

INFORMATION By April 19 — send to Imelda:
- Short biographical sketch
- Picture of recipient for display binder
- Name and address of recipient

NUMBER OF Capay School — 1
RECIPIENTS Hamilton Unified - 2
Lake School - 1
Plaza School - 1
rland Unified - 2
Princeton Unified - 1
Stony Creek Unified- 1
Willows Unified - 2
Glenn Co. Office of Education -2

“Glenn Conmty Office of Education is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer”

110



Saturday, May 18, 2019, 8:00 a.m. at the Glenn County Fair’s Flaherty Hall,
located near the Depot Fair Office. In the interest of time we are asking that
inductees limit their presentation to 5 minutes.

CEREMONY

It is the district’s responsibility to contact the recipient(s) and notify them of the award. Let the
recipient(s) know that they and their relatives are invited to attend. If a recipient is deceased, please

notify their relatives of the selection and the specifics of the ceremony.

Please notify my office if you do not have a recipient this year. For additional information, please let
Imelda at 934-6575 — ext. 3061.

W

Tracey Qu
Superintendent of Schools

Enclosure

111



HAMILTON HIGH

Ella McLaughlin Barkely
James Camereon
Winifred Haak

Hans J. Reines

Fred K. Walker

RInk

79 Tneima Ahsley Watson

1986
1987
1989
1990
1902
1983
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1599
2000
2001
2002
2003
2003
2004
2005
20086
2007
2008
2009
2010

112

Donald R. Prusia

Arvel V. Allrsad

Maynard Strong

1 Pete Panchesson

Bernice Loveall Fox
Hiimer Finne
Oscar Carpenter
Emma Unhl Roney
Charles Haines
Prentice Ross
Bill Rankin
Patricia Kaiser
Gail Zimmerman
Marta Coleman
Paul Houser
Scott D. Jonnsorn
Hubert Lower
Rae Turnbul!
Maxine Bigler
Frederick Sturzen
Jeanette Sturzen
Sonya Reynier
Jeannie Robinson
Fred Freitas
Coleen Parker
Otic Lohse

Jilt R, Kortie

Blanca Carrille

fond
J IGigiu T

HAMILTON ELEMENTARY
Irma Stratton
Ruth Reagsr Stanlay

Joe Billiou
Paula Jamies
Nellie Hanks
PRI P BN s p-(y SR
[ ]
Chester Walker
Margaret Mason

2 ..Edna Cudis

Dale Anderson
Bryant Odom

Tomasa Murgia

Esther Sabin
Beuiah Cyt
Alice Donovan
Daniel O. Paul
Sarah Qdom
Fred L. Shanks
‘Marge Howard
Sharon Talk
Mike Thomas
Judy Mulvany
Ruthie Hofland
Jeneli Coor
John Kissam
Eva Perez
Pamela Radke
Lili Hands

Dan White

2011
2012
2013
2014

2014

an4 s
yavipe

2018
2016
2017
2017
2018

2418

HAMILTON UNIFIED
Ray Odom
William (Bill} Boone

Lui Tuaic’o
Cyndee Sialey
Darlene Odom

.- i
Susan Lohse

Ken Mason

Greg Felton
Raiph Brand Jr.
Tom Conwell
Keith Dietle
Shelley Hutchens



BOARD AGENDA ITEM — RESOLUTION RE EXEMPTION FROM LOCAL LAND USE PLANNING
REQUIREMENTS; AND, DESIGNATION OF DISTRICT AS LEAD AGENCY FOR CEQA STUDY PURPOSES

The attached Resolution will, as a part of the planning process for the proposed expansion of Hamilton
High School, exempt the District, as a State Agency, from local land use planning requirements. This
would relieve the District from resolving conflicts between State mandated siting, design and
construction requirements for public schools, and local codes which may either be in direct conflict with,
or may exceed State requirements. The District is required to follow State requirements in order to
receive design approval and be eligible for State Facilities funding; County requirements different from

those required by the State would be unapproved and not funded by the State.

The attached Resolution would also designate the District as the Lead Agency for California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) study purposes. This designation will allow the District, rather than
the County or State, to act as the controlling agency for this project: powers would include setting
project scope; reviewing all project documentation and findings; and acting and adopting all necessary

findings and mitigation actions.

District staff recommends approval.

113



114

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOQLUTION NC. 18-12-110

IN THE MATTER OF: The exemption of the Hamilton Unified District from County zoning and
use ordinances for the proposed Hamilton High School Expansion Project in Glenn County, as
well as designating the District as Lead Agency under the provisions of the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA}. :

RESOLUTION

HEREAS, pursuant to Section 53094 of the Government Code, School Districts are
allowed to exempt specific projects from local zoning and use ordinances, as well as designating
itself as the Lead Agency under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA); and

WHEREAS, exemption from local zening and use ordinances would relieve the District

i uf BRTe WA Ad LT\JAsL

from resolving conflicts between State mandated siting, design and construction requirements for

e s . - . . B ' oy
public schools, and local codes which may either be in direct conflict with, or may exceed State

requirements; and
WHEREAS, the District is required to follow State requirements in order to receive

design approval and be eligible for State Facilities funding, and County requirements different
from or above those required by the State would be unapproved and not funded; and

WHEREAS, this exemption will benefit the District’s capital facilities program as well as
the County’s planning process; and

WHEREAS, this exemption will preserve the District and County from any potential
conflicts between local ordinances and mandated State requirements for public school siting,
design and construction; and

WHEREAS, the District may, by statute, designate itself as the Lead Agency for
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) study and action purposes, and carry out those
functions required of a Lead Agency; now

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, by a recorded two thirds affirmative vote, that
the Hamilton Unified School District exempt itself from Glenn County zoning and use
ordinances for the proposed Hamilton High School Expansion Project in the County of Glenn, as
well as designating the District as the Lead Agency under the provisions of the California

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).



The above RESOLUTION was duly passed by the Board of Trustees of the Hamilton Unified
School District at its regularly scheduled meeting on February 27, 2019, by the following roll

call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAINED:

Signed and approved by me after passage.

Gabriel Leal, President

Wendall Lower, Clerk

115



BOARD AGENDA ITEM-Adoption of Draft Demographic Study for Hamilton Unified School District

The attached Demographic Study of Hamilton Unified School District for the 2018/2019 school vear, has
been prepared by SchoolWorks, inc. of Roseville, CA. The study indicates that the District previously
experianced daclining anroliment overall the past 10 years, from 840 studants attending during the

-1

2009/10 scheol year to a current enrollment of 713 students.

Hamilton Unified School District is projected to decline in enrollment by 2.81% (or 20 students} for the
2019720 schooi year. The District is projected to grow over the next six {6) years, with a projected
enroliment of 823 students in the 2024/25 school year. This is a total growth of 110 students, which is
an increase of 15.43%.

Future impacts from new housing development is predicated upon information provided by loca!
municipalities on the development of 250 housing units over the next six {6) years. If the buiiding rates
increase or decrease, then the timeline shown in this Study will need to be modified accordingly. These
projected new developments in the District's boundary are not expecied to generate any students next
year. A total of 171 students are expected from new homes over the next six (6] years.

iended that the Study be updatad in the next two to three years, in order to identify any

v
I rocuusanina

m
potential changing demographic circumstances within the District.

! el = YalaY

District staff recommends adoption of the Demagraphic Study



| Hamilton City, CA 95951
| PH: (530) 826-4014

40

Facility Problem Solvers

Mr. Charles Tracy,
Superintendent

HAMILTON UNIFIED
SCHOOL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC STUDY 2018/19

February 2019

SchoolWorks, Inc.

8331 Sierra College Blvd., #221
Roseville CA, 95661

Phone: 916-733-0402
www.SchoolWorksGIS.com

117



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study

2018/19
TABLE O CONTENTS
Page
INTRODUICTION euceraernusssasmrsssssssssanmssssessssssssessssmssssressasssastasessmssesssmasnss sesasassssssasssesssssnsannessssarssnasnaes i
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY i
METHODOLOGY ...... z
HISTORIC BIRTH RATES 6
TRANSITIONAL KINDERGARTEN. ... 7
HISTORIC ENROLLMENT AND TRENDS ...... g
NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS....... 10
CLASSROOM COUNTS AND CAPACITY 12
SCHOOL PROJECTIONS. cecvvvrsmsseserevassesmsiserenssassansns 13
DISTRICT PROJECTIONS ..cvcreresnsnssessansssssssasssssnsssssssesanssssnesess 20
SCHOOL FACILITY UTILIZATION .ovscaussscssssnsssssossssnssnsssnvansusonsassssnsssssssssassivosisisnssnsssvosisnssasssssssss 22
February 2019
Page i

ol (Vobdam i1



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study

2018/19
CHARTS
Page
10 YEAR ENROLLMENT HISTORY AND 6 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS.......cocsaneemeecnassenes .3
2019/2020 1 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION BY SCHOOL ...ccoecvuencranrarassanenassnesansas 4
KINDERGARTEN PROJECTIONS BASED ON BIRTHS........cccocrentieimecnneacansacracsensonssacacasnane 6
KINDERGARTEN ENROLLMENT TO BIRTH RATIO ............ 7
RETENTION RATES SINCE KINDERGARTEN 8
HISTORIC ENROLLMENT AND COHORTS 9
NEW DEVELOPMENT CONTRACTION 11
CAPACITY & PROJECTED ENROLLMENT
HAMILTON ELEM 15
HAMILTON HIGH icisisissssnanantrmnnsnsannsssovsosstnsnaminsbsnssssbos sisons snmsmssssssssransnasssusosissanssssssssasnne 17
ELLA BARKLEY HIGH..... 18
STUDENT ATTENDANCE MATRIX 19
10 YEAR ENROLLMENT HISTORY & 6 YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION 20
ONE YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY ......ccrormenrns 21
ENROLLMENT PROJECTION SUMMARY BY GRADE............. .21
ENROLLMIENT PROJECTION SUMMARY BY SCHOOL ....ccoreuseaseaes w2
SCHOOL FACILITY UTILIZATION .................... ERNEOR—— 22
February 2019
Page ii

ATy Predlam Tel o3 119



|~
N
(o]

Hamilton Unified Schooel District

Demiographic St

2018/18
MAPS
Page
DISTRICT MAP WITH STUDENT RESIDENTIAL LOCATION..... . 5
NEW HOUSING DEVELOPMENTS G YR 1) ]
SCHOOL BOUNDARY MAP
HAMILTON ELEM...... S—— : 14
HARMILTOM HIGH ...cooceaonseosssamssrsssssesresss s ssassasssssssssesssr ssesmsssas 18

February 2019



Hamilton Unified School! District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Introduction

This Demagraphic Study provides a comprehensive enrollment analysis for the Hamilton Unified School
District. The district-wide and school-specific enrollment projections are meant to serve as a planning tool to
help with both long- and short-term planning. Demographic Studies examine the factors that influence
school enroliments, namely trends in demographics, birth rates, and housing development. They are also
used as a tool to identify certain facility planning requirements such as capacity, utilization of existing
facilities, planning for modernization or new construction, and attendance boundary redistricting. This Study
provides information based on the 2018/19 District enrollments and programs, local planning policies and
residential development. As these factors change and timelines are adjusted, the Demographic Study should

be revised to reflect the most current infoermation.

Executive Summary

Hamilton Unified School District consists of one (1) elementary school, one (1) comprehensive high school,
and one (1) continuation high school. Hamilton Unified School District has experienced declining enrollment

overall the past 10 years from 840 students attending during the 2009/10 school year to a current enroliment
of 713 students.

Hamilton Unified School District is projected to decline in enrollment by 2.81% (or 20 students) for the
2019/20 school year. The District is projected to grow over the next six {6) years, with a projected enrollment
of 823 students in the 2024/25 school year. This is a total growth of 110 students, which is an increase of

15.43%.

Future impacts from new housing development is predicated upon information provided by local
municipalities on the development of 250 housing units over the next six (6) years. If the building rates
increase or decrease, then the timeline shown in this Study will need to be modified accordingly. These
projected new developments in the District's boundary are not expected to generate any students next year.
A total of 171 students are expected from new homes over the next six (6) years.

Based on current District loading standards and classroom space, the District has a net classroom capacity of
944 students, and a current enrollment of 713. This gives the District a current utilization factor of 75.5%.
The projected utilization factor in six (6} years will be 87.2%. This assumes loading standards remain constant

and no additional facilities are built or removed.

These projections assume the transfers between schools remain consistent. If changes in facilities,
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted.

February 2019
Poge 1

Fasckity Presitm Sotvom

121



122

Hamilton Unified Schogo! District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Methodoiogy

The enrallment projections for each school are generated using a State standard weighted cohort trend
analvsis. The hasic projections are created by studving the individua! geographic areas. Once the trends are

Dol o

anaiyzed for éach area, the base projections are modified using the fofiowing procedures:

c)

(=9
[t

e}

Birth rates are used to project future kindergarten enroliment. It is assumed if the births

_indicate there was an increase of 4% one year, then thers will be a corresponding 4%

increase in the kindergarten class five {5) years fater.

Inter-District student counts are not included in the base geographic trend analysis since
these students reside outside of the District. Therefore, the current number of students-
per-school and studenis-per-grade are added to the base projections.

Intra-District students are those who transfer from one schaoi to another. The number of
students transferring into and out of each school are calculated and used to determine the
difference between the projections for students living in each attendance area versus those
that are projected to attand the scheol.

The projections for special education students and alternative programs are created by
assuming those programs typically serve a percentage of the total District population.
Therefore, as the District grows or declines, the enroliment in those programs would
increase or decrease accordingly.

The number of students living in the boundary are used to generate the cohort factors. The
weighted average of the three (3] vears was determined with the current year weighted
50%, the prior year 33.3% and the iast year 16.7%. This gives the current trends more value
in determining the projections. Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who
will be residing in each attendance area for the following years.

February 2019
Page 2



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study

2018/19
—_— e, —— ————— e — — -
10 Year Enrollment History and 6 Year Enroliment Projections

The Hamilton Unified School District has grown over the past ten (10) years from an enrollment of 840 in
2009/10 to the current enrollment of 713. This chart provides a summary of the last ten (10) years of historic
enroliment and projected enrollment for the next six (6) years. The color orange represents the historic and
projected enrollment for the elementary school grades K-6. The color green represents the historic and
projected enroliment for the middle school grades 7-8. The color blue represents the historic and projected
enrollment for the high school grades 9-12. The entire District enrollment is shown at the top of each bar.

February 2019
Poge 3

FociRy Frovism Scheuws
123



bt

i

Harmilton Unified School District hias a current enroliment of 713 students. The projected enroliment for next
year shows a decrease of 20 students. This one (1) year summary analyzes the net change between the
current Bistrict entollment by school and by grade, and the projected enrollment for 2019/20.

The cohort change factor indicates the change in the number of students for each-grade compared-to the — -
number of students in the prior grade the previous year.

__These projections.assume the transfers between schools remain consistent. if:changes.in facilities,
schedules, programs or policies are made, then the patterns may be impacted.

The students living in the boundary generate the cohort factors Wthh are calculated for the past three (3}
years and the weighted average is determmed Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who
will be re5|dmg in each attendance area for the following years. Next the attendance factor is used to
determine the net enrollmerit for each grade. The attendance factor is determined by analyzmg the current
year of students to see how many Inter- and Intra-district transfers there are.

February 2019
Page 4




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

District Map with Student Residential Locations

LN

h§

{
\

-—r

| Tl N T X \ 5 / \El
LA H__‘_l = F |
& QI |3
ImAm ] : 4 T 'j/

sy L | >
AU AS P
= 1 f_ N f==s\g

N

This map shows the District boundary along with the location of each student based on their residential
address. This geographic data is the foundation for our demographic analysis. Any red dots outside the
District boundary will represent students attending one of the District schools or programs but have a
residence outside the District. This map also identifies different areas of student population density.

February 2019

Page 5

125



fot
[}

Hamilton Unified School District

The following section is an analysis of the number of births in the Hamilton Unified Schooi District. The
number of births are compiled by zip code regions and provided by the Department of Health. The zip code
areas do not exactly match the District boundar el i

in the District, were used for this analysis.

T T e B Ve | s

*Kindergarten Totals mayinclude same Transitional Kindergarten students for some of the pastyears to more accurately
correlate a 12-month period of hirths to a 12-month period of enroliment.

The above figure illustrates the correlation between births in the District area and the number of
kindergarten students attending Hamilton Unified schools five (5) years later. The number of births between
2002 and 2013 has averaged about 58 per year. The recent birth rates over the past four {4] years (2014 to
2017), which will generate the kindergarten classes for the next four (4] years (2019 to 2022), have been
between 40 and 58. We have assumed that the current kindergarten capture rate of 82.46% will be
maintained in the future. The kindergarten projections shown here do not account for the impact of any

additional housing units.

February 2019
Page 5

Saiilly Meldan Mo m



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Historic Kindergarten Capture Rates

This figure shows the kindergarten capture rates for the past 12 years. Since the birth data is derived from
zip code areas, which do not exactly match with the District boundaries, the capture rate also accounts for
differences in the coverage areas. Low capture rates are common when a district serves only a portion of a
large zip code area. A large capture rate is possible when families move into the area after the children were
born, but before they arrived for kindergarten. Overall, the District has had a 12 year average capture rate of

86.39%.

Transitional Kindergarten

The Transitional Kindergarten (TK) program started in 2012 to provide an extra year for young children to get
ready for kindergarten. Currently, the TK program allows four (4) year-olds who will turn five (5) between
September 2 and December 2. Some districts allow parents with children just outside that window to also
participate in the program. Since the window for the TK program is only 3 months, participation in the TK
program is typically around 25% of the total kindergarten enrollment. In most current state processes, such
as CalPADS reporting, the State Building Program, and ADA, TK students are included with the kindergarten

numbers.

February 2019
Page 7

Fusthy Pashiat Sgdoies
127



128

100! District

Retention Rates Since Kindergarten

This chart compares the original kindergarten class size to the current enroliment for each grade. For
example, the current 6t grade class has 41 students and six (6} years ago the kmdergarten class had 36
students. ‘Overall the class sizes have increased since kindergarten.

February 2019
Page 8

Frerty addees Robrars



Hamilton Unified Schoo! District

Demographic Study
2018/19

Historic Enroliment and Trends

45
37
47
41
58
36

47
37

45

.54 ¢ 78
91 " - 50

=3

S 66 S
12 S 37 S o2 SR 70 SR
Eﬁm!sﬁ?z_’jﬁn ‘{690-!7
nual nge: 4100 -7 - 2
This chart shows the enrollment by grade level over the past four (4) years. The cohort values were
calculated for each grade and each year, along with the weighted average for each grade. A positive cohort

value indicates that grade is expected to have more students than the previous grade last year. A negative
value would mean that the grade has fewer students compared to the previous grade last year.

|

In general, a positive cohort is representative of growth and a negative cohort indicates a decline in
enrollment. There are some exceptions. First grade usually has a positive cohort, as there are some students
that do not attend kindergarten at public schools but arrive in first grade.

Another important item to notice is the current breakdown by grade level of the student population.
Comparing the number of students in the lower grades to the upper grades can indicate potential increases
or decreases in future enrollments. Also, if there is a large class or a small class, it will slowly cause a ripple in

the enroliments as it advances a grade each year.

Finally, the annual change at the bottom of this chart indicates the net impact of the changes in enrollment
over the past few years.

February 2019
Page 9

ey Sl T
129



This close up view of the District shows the location of the projected new development areas.

February 2019
Page 10

Frgity Prodlitn o v

130



Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

The projections used in this report are based on the following number of units projected from these
developments:

|
i

[High Totals

Assuming that 250 of the planned units are completed over a six (6) year period, there would be an average
of 42 neéw housing units per year. To determine the impact of the new housing development, each new
housing unit is multiplied by the student yield rate. Currently the District student yield rate is 0.686 students
per housing unit. This breaks down as follows:

The yield rate used for new construction eligibility determination in the State building program is 0.70
students per home for K-12 districts. The yield rate in the Hamilton Unified School District is lower than the

State average.

Based on these estimated construction rates, the development will generate 0 students next year and a total
of 171 students in the next six (6) years.

February 2019
Page 11

Sardy Awdlew Seives

131



132

Demographic Study

P SN

Liassroom Counts and Capacity

1t is important to understand that capacity and ciassroom counis may be viewed different ways for different
urposes. The State School Facilities Program (SFP) considers all available teaching stations excluding
hysical education facilities and core facilities {e.g., libraries, multipurpose rooms, and administrative spacas),

s part of the site capacity when calculating eligibility for new construciion ¢r modernization funding. The
State also has its own loading standards per classroom as part of the eligibility determinations.

n
=~
Fe)
~

Another method for calculating capacity and number of classreoms is based on local District standards of .
class size and a definition of what is considered a full day teaching station. The District may set aside several
classroom spaces defined by the SFP for specialized programs or puli-out spaces.

The classroom counts and capacities defined in this Demegraphic Study represent the rooms that have been
identified by Hamilton Unified Schog! District administration as designated fulitime teaching stations. This
count is a net count and may not take into consideration octher rcoms which could be used as fulltime
teaching stations but are needed for other programs offered by the District.

The classroom counts are shown for each school and are used to determine the capacity. The classroom

counts represent the rooms that can be used for teaching purposes at each school site. The elassroom
counts may not represent the current classrooms being used, as there may be unused rgoins o the school
some cases, there may be fewer classrooms counted than current teaching stations if some of the

&
=
®
5

(R}
e e e e~y I s TIPS RS Ly PP [P P ¥
S OCINE USSh weire GeSignea 1Gi ut are cuirently oeing used as C1assrooms due to

overcrowding.

February 2019
Page 12




Hamilton Unified School District

Demographic Study
2018/19

e e e e e e e e et e i i r e ot et e — — e ——

School Projections

This Study provides a detailed analysis of student attendance patterns and enrollment for each school. This
includes a boundary map illustrating that particular school’s attendance patterns along with a chart showing
the projected enrollment for the next six (6) years. These charts indicate the actual enrollment at each
school over the past four (4) years along with the projected enroliment for the next six (6) years. In addition,
the number of students living in the boundary are shown for the same time period. If there are more
students attending than live in the area, then there is a net inflow. If more students live in the boundary than

attend the schaol, then there is a net outflow.

The current capacity is shown on these charts to identify if there will be classroom space available for the
students. If space is not available, then the attendance patterns will likely need to change if the additional
facilities are not provided. The capacity for each school was determined by using the following loading

standards for each classroom identified:

Grade Loading Standard
TKK 24
1-3 24
4-6 28
7-8 28
9-12 24

These loading standards are based on the current loading factors used this year and may change based on
the level of funding for schools in the future.

Backup data is provided below each projection chart that shows the calculations of the cohort factors used to
determine the enrollment projections for each school.

The number of students living in the boundary are shown, which are then used to generate the cohort
factors. The weighted average of the three (3) years was determined with the current year weighted 50%,
the prior year 33.3% and the last year 16.7%. This gives the current trends more value in determining the
projections. Those cohorts are then used to determine the students who will be residing in each attendance
area for the following years. The kindergarten enrollment is projected using the birth data instead of the

cohort factor shown here.
The Attendance Factors were determined by analyzing the current year of students to see how many Inter-

and Intra-District transfers there are. Once the baseline projections are calculated for the residents in the
attendance area, the Intra-District and Inter-District factors are applied to determine the projected ]

enrollment for each school.

The last three (3) columns in the chart, Current Enroliment, 19/20 Projection, and Net Change, show the
current enrollment, next year’s projection and net change in enrollment for next year. These are compared

by grade to show the details needed for staffing and classroom needs.

February 2019
Page 13

iy Prabion o 133



Hamilton Elem ' 7/
St Legend /
& hcoiring from other Districts (74) '
@ Living in area and attending this school (342)
i ]
T
/ M=
]jt—, f" ol — . 3
) L _l-____A_ _\_.,
~ | =t
41T\
A
|
J Al l\ N T
Y B
S —
b /
S § L
"
L 7
A (
| SN S—— i
L - 3
s .L -
\ B .l
J ; i
— ™~ L{ -
N Wil
. b e o 2 \
Hamilton Elem
Transfer Students
| Li:';“-.i‘.."_i'lzi_r"i"qﬁ- ;
: |74
inter-Ditrict
0
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80
Students
[ 'ncoming B Outgosiiig
February 2019
Page 14

134



Hamilton Unified School District
Demographic Study
2018/

d Enrollment
Elen

17/18  aspg b
= Cal »g'qﬁj‘.

- e
X A il ;
¥ ] &v-ﬂ—: _— a. z’l
¥ = s
o -~ & *. i ‘ ) w -
* j:l - 2 -
February 2019
Page 15

135



